
 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 

501 Taft Highway 

Bakersfield, California 

 
TUESDAY, APRIL 21, 2020 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
Pg. 4 
 

 

Pg. 5 

Pg. 9 
Pg. 10 

Pg. 14 

Pg. 15 
Pg. 23 

 

 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF QUORUM  12:00 NOON 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 Pending Litigation (54956.9(d)(1)): 

A. SWRCB Kern River 

  
 Potential Litigation (54956.9(d)(2)(3)):  Four Matters 

 Potential Litigation (54956.9(d)(4)):  Three Matters 

 
 Real Property Negotiations (54956.8):  

A. Eastside Canal ROW 

B. Property Description:  Potential Recharge Lands:  APN  539-010-06 

Water Exchange/Transfer/Sale/Purchase; Miscellaneous Owners and Agencies    
  District Negotiator:  Mark Mulkay 

  Under Negotiation:  price and terms 

 
 Wages and Salaries – Annual Review (54957.6)   

 

REGULAR SESSION:                                                                                       Approximately 1:30 P.M. 
 

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS AND PUBLIC 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  (Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on any matter not on the agenda, but absent 

extraordinary circumstances, the Board may not take action on such matter.  Members of the public may address items of interest that are 

listed on the agenda prior to the Board=s decision on such items.) 
 

DIRECTOR’S FORUM  

 
I. Consider any proposed additions to or deletions from the Agenda. 

 

II. CONSENT CALENDAR (The Board will consider various non-controversial routine items and issues relating to matters 

which are of interest to the District.  Any Board Member may request that any or all items be considered and acted upon 

independently of the others.  These items include the following.) 
A. Approve Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of March 17, 2020. 

B. Approve March/April 2020 District Construction and Water Banking Disbursements. 

C. Approve March/April 2020 District Accounts Payable. 
D. Ratify KDWD/RRBWSD 2020 Operational Exchange – March 23, 2020. 

E. Approve Contract for Services – Zeiders Consulting. 

F. Approve Master Design Engineering Services Agreement – AECOM. 
 

 

 

 



 
 

Pg. 39 

Pg. 40 

 
 

 
 

 

Pg. 57 

Pg. 58 

 

Pg. 60 
Pg. 61 

 

 
 

Pg. 76 
Pg. 86 

Pg. 88 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Pg. 96 

Pg. 99 

III. FINANCIAL MATTERS (The Board will consider various items and issues relating to financial matters which are of 

interest to the District.  These items are intended to include, but not be limited to, the following.) 
A. Business & Finance Committee – April 16, 2020 

- March 2020 Financials. 

- Employee Wages and Salaries. 
 

IV. COMMITTEE REPORTS (The Board will consider various items and issues relating to matters which have been, or will 

be, considered by committees of the Board and which are of interest to the District.  These items are intended to include, but not be 

limited to, the following.) 
A. Special Projects Committee – April 7, 2020 

- District Facility and Maintenance Update. 

- District Office Building Expansion Update. 

- Approve Branch 1 Pipeline Project Design at Hosking Road. 
- Approve Branch 1 at Greenlawn Cemetery Grant of Easement. 

 

V. KERN RIVER WATERMASTER (The Board will consider various items and issues relating to the Kern River 

Watermaster that are of interest to the District.  These items are intended to include, but not be limited to, the following.) 
A. District Watermaster Report. 
B. Kern River Watermaster Reports. 

C. Isabella Dam Safety Remediation.  

 

VI. MANAGER'S REPORT (The General Manager will discuss, and the Board will consider various items and issues 

relating to the ongoing and future operations of the District which are of interest to the Board.  These items are intended to include, 

but not be limited to, the following.) 
A. Verbal. 

B. District Phone System Update - Verbal. 
C. KDWD/AEWSD Cost Sharing Agreement for Development of Sunset Spreading Project. 

- Design – Earthwork, Pump Station, Pipeline. Environmental and Electrical Service. 

 
VII. WATER BANKING PROJECTS (The Board will consider various items and issues relating to local water banking 

projects that are of interest to the District.  These items are intended to include, but not be limited to, the following.) 

A. Pioneer/KWB/Other Local Operations, Spreading and Pumping. 

B. Kern Fan Monitoring Committee. 

C. KDWD Water Banking Project. 

D. Cross Valley Canal Advisory Committee. 

 

VIII. KCWA/KFA/KRWCA/KGA/KRGSA/SVWRA/IRWMP (The Board will consider various items and issues 

relating to the KCWA, Kern Fan Authority, Kern River Watershed Coalition Authority, and the Kern Groundwater Authority that 

are of interest to the District. These items are intended to include, but not be limited to, the following.) 
A. KCWA Activities and SWP Update – Delta Conveyance, Contract Extension, 15% Alloc., 

Yuba River Water Program 
B. Member Unit Policy Meetings 

C. Kern Fan Authority     

D. Kern River Watershed Coalition Authority (ILRP) 
E. Local Groundwater Sustainability Activities 

F. South Valley Water Resources Authority 

G. Integrated Regional Water Management Plan – Res 2020-03 Adopt the Kern IRWMP 

Update 
 

IX. ATTORNEY'S REPORT (Legal Counsel will discuss, and the Board will consider items and issues of legal interest to 

the District.) 

A. RRBWSD Notice of Preparation of an EIR – Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project 

 
X. ADJOURN 

Requests for disability related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by telephoning or contacting 

Lynn Fredricks at the District Office (661-834-4656).  Please attempt to make such requests known at least 24 hours before the scheduled 

meeting.  Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, any materials relating to an open session item on this agenda, distributed to the Board 

of Directors after the distribution of the agenda packet, will be made available for public inspection at the time of distribution at the District, 501 

Taft Highway, Bakersfield, CA. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Tab II 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

To:   Kern Delta Water District Board of Directors 

From:  L. Mark Mulkay 

Date: April 21, 2020 

Re: II CONSENT CALENDAR 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve items A through F listed under the Consent Calendar. 
 
DISCUSSION: 

Consent Calendars are used to approve non-controversial routine matters.  Any Board Member 
may request that any or all of the items under the Consent Calendar be moved to the regular 
agenda and discussed and voted on separately. 
 
II. A. Approve Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of March 17, 2020 (copy attached). 
 
II. B. Approve March/April 2020 District Construction and Water Banking Disbursements 
totaling $88,343.68 – copy attached.  Please see the Minutes of the April 7, 2020 Special Projects 
Committee for more detail. 
 
II. C. Approve March/April 2020 District Accounts Payable – copy attached.  Please see the 
Minutes of the April 16, 2020 Business & Finance Committee for more detail. 
 
II. D. Ratify the March 23, 2020 Agreement between Rosedale Rio-Bravo WSD and Kern Delta 
WD (copy attached).  This Agreement provides for an operational exchange between the two 
districts.  Kern Delta has an obligation to return previously banked water to The Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California and Rosedale has an obligation to return water to Arvin-
Edison WSD.  Kern Delta will deliver water into the Arvin Intake Canal to satisfy Rosedale’s 
delivery to Arvin and Rosedale will deliver water to the California Aqueduct to satisfy Kern 
Delta’s delivery to MWD. 
 
II. E. Approve the attached Contract For Services between Kern Delta and Zeiders Consulting.  
This Contract formalizes the relationship between Kern Delta and Bill Zeiders. 
 
II. F. Approve the attached Master Design Engineering Services Agreement between Kern Delta 
and AECOM.  This Agreement formalizes the relationship between Kern Delta and AECOM. 
 



KERN DELTA WATER DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

March 17, 2020 
   
 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2020, 12:00 NOON – 3:42 P.M. 

 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Antongiovanni, Bidart, Collins, Garone, Kaiser, Mendonca, Palla, Spitzer, 
Tillema 

 
DIRECTORS ABSENT: None 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: From KDWD:  General Manager Mulkay, Chief Operating Officer Teglia, 

Assistant General Manager Bellue, Controller Duncan, Hydrographer Perry 
Hyatt, and Legal Counsel Robert Hartsock.  From RRBWSD:  Roy Pierucci, 
Jason Selvidge, Eric Averett, Dan Bartel, and Karen Northcutt (phone).  Others: 
Jeevan Muhar, and Doug Gosling. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION DECLARED AT 12:05 P.M. 

 

President Palla declared an Executive Session pursuant to Government Code Sections: Pending Litigation 

54956.9(d)(1) SWRCB Kern River; Potential Litigation 54956.9 (d)(2)(3)(4); Real Property Negotiations 

54956.8; and Appointment/Employment 54957. 

 

 
REGULAR SESSION DECLARED AT 1:00 P.M. 

 
Legal Counsel announced the Board authorized the position of Administrative Assistant and that the 
General Manager has hired Ms. Madelyne Rodriguez to fill that position.  In addition, by unanimous vote, 
the Board appointed Mr. Richard Iger as the District’s new General Counsel and the retention of 
McMurtrey Hartsock & Worth as the District’s Special Counsel. 
 
 
INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS AND PUBLIC 
 
Roy Pierucci, Jason Selvidge, Eric Averett, Dan Bartel, Karen Northcutt (phone), Jeevan Muhar, and Doug 
Gosling introduced themselves to the Board. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None. 
 
 
PRESENTATION BY ROSEDALE-RIO BRAVO WSD: 
 
Representatives from RRBWSD provided a Power Point presentation to the Board regarding their Draft 
EIR for the Onyx Ranch South Fork Valley Water Project. 
 
Director Garone left the meeting at 2:00 pm. 
 
 



 2 

DIRECTORS FORUM 
 
None. 
 
 
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
None. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
M/S/C (Spitzer/Bidart) (yes-8, no-0):  The Board approved and authorized item A through D of the 
Consent Calendar. 

A. Approve Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of February 18, 2020 and the Special Board 

Meeting of March 3, 2020. 

B. Approve February/March 2020 District Construction and Water Banking Disbursements. 

C. Approve February/March 2020 District Accounts Payable. 

D. Ratify AECOM Scope of Work related to Bid Assistance for Office Expansion Project, Feb 24, 

2020. 
 

 
FINANCIAL MATTERS 
 
Business & Finance Committee – March 12, 2020 
 
M/S/C (Antongiovanni/Tillema) (yes-8, no-0):  The Board approved the February and March 2020 District 
Accounts Payable Invoices, the February 2020 District and Water Banking Project Financial Statements, 
Treasurer’s Reports, and Delinquency Report as presented. 
 

RESOLUTION 2020-02 IN THE MATTER OF:  REVISING DISTRICT STATE WATER TOLLS 

 

 On motion of Director Antongiovanni, seconded by Director Bidart and carried by the 
following vote, the Board Approved Resolution 2020-02 to wit: 

 

AYES:  Directors Antongiovanni, Bidart, Collins, Kaiser, Mendonca, Palla, Spitzer, Tillema 
 

NOES:  None 

 

ABSENT:  Garone 
 

ABSTENTIONS:  None 

 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Special Projects Committee – March 3, 2020. 
 
Mr. Bellue briefly reported on the March Special Projects Committee meeting and District maintenance. 
The District Office Building Expansion plans are being reviewed for approval by the County. 
 
M/S/C (Collins/Kaiser) (yes-8, no-0):  The Board approved the March 18, 2020 publication in the 
Bakersfield Californian of the invitation to receive bids for the District’s Office Building Expansion 



 3 

Project. 
 
 
KERN RIVER WATERMASTER 
 
Mr. Hyatt reviewed and discussed the water supplies of the District for the month of February and early 
March.  Due to low precipitation, the inflow into the Reservoir continues to be low.  The District is 
attempting to store as much water as possible for the summer demand.  Mr. Mulkay reviewed the February 
Kern River Watermaster’s Report and the Isabella construction schedule. 
 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Mulkay recommended the Special Projects Committee name be changed to the Operations & Projects 
Committee and the “Special Board Meeting” typically held the first Tuesday of each month to now be 
posted as a Regular Board Meeting.  President Palla authorized the name changes.  Mr. Mulkay also 
advised the Board that the annexation process for the Sunset property has been completed. 
 
Due to the Covid-19 illness, Governor Newsom has temporarily eased the Brown Act restrictions governing 
teleconferences for Board Meetings.  Staff will provide the Board Members with call-in capability for 
future Board and Committee Meetings. 
 

 

WATER BANKING PROJECTS 

 

Mr. Mulkay briefly reviewed all the water banking projects on the Kern River fan.  Recovery within the 

Kern Fan area is beginning to increase.  There is minor recharge activity in Kern Delta at this time. Staff is 

anticipating a request from The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California for up to 50,000 acre-feet 

of Return Water. 

 

 

KCWA/KFA/KRWCA/KGA/KRGSA/SVWRA 

 

Mr. Mulkay briefly discussed various matters regarding activities of the Kern County Water Agency 

(including the status of Delta Conveyance Project and Contract Extension), Kern Fan Authority, Kern River 

Watershed Coalition, Kern Groundwater Authority, Kern River Groundwater Sustainability Agency, the 

South Valley Water Resources Authority, and the Integrated Regional Water Management Plan.  The State 

Water Allocation for 2020 remains at 15%.  There is no SWP Pool A or Pool B water available for purchase. 

The District is participating in the 2020 Yuba River Program sponsored by Kern County Water Agency. 

 

RESOLUTION 2020-03 IN THE MATTER OF:  AUTHORIZATION TO ADOPT THE KERN 

INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE. 

 
 On motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Collins and carried by the following 

vote, the Board Approved Resolution 2020-03 to wit: 

 
AYES:  Directors Antongiovanni, Bidart, Collins, Kaiser, Mendonca, Palla, Spitzer, Tillema 

 

NOES:  None 

 
ABSENT:  Garone 

 

ABSTENTIONS:  None 



 4 

 

 

 
ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
No Report. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION DECLARED AT 2:45 P.M. 

 

President Palla declared an Executive Session pursuant to Government Code Sections: Pending Litigation 

54956.9(d)(1) SWRCB Kern River; Potential Litigation 54956.9 (d)(2)(3)(4); Real Property Negotiations 

54956.8; and Appointment/Employment 54957. 

 

 
REGULAR SESSION DECLARED AT 3:40 P.M. 

 
Legal Counsel announced no action was taken that required disclosure under the Brown Act at this time. 

 

 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 

 

There being no further business, President Palla adjourned the meeting at approximately 3:42 P.M. 
 
 
       Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       L. Mark Mulkay, General Manager 
 
Approved by Board 
 
 
___________________________ 
Richard Tillema, Board Secretary 



VARIABLE

PG&E Well utilities 1,236.02 2791

AEWSD Water deliveries 70,394.13 2792

KCWA CVC 2018-2019 pumping reconciliation 1,505.88 2793

Kern Machinery Parts, u-joint, hydraulic cylinder kit 3,301.45 2794

PG&E Well utilities 156.20 2795

Ruben's Pipeline Wier repairs 11,750.00 2796

                                                         TOTAL $88,343.68

KERN DELTA WATER BANKING PROGRAM DISBURSEMENT

RECOMMENDED BY THE OPERATIONS & PROJECTS COMMITTEE - APRIL 7, 2020



MARCH SUB TOTAL 246,306.37$     

# PAYEE AMOUNT CHECK

1 AT&T - telephone service 304.27 43492

2 AT&T - mobile service 33.20 43493

3 ADMIN. SOLUTIONS - COBRA administration - February 2020 45.90 43494

4 BANK OF AMERICA - maintenance supplies, fuel, parts, lunch, conference 5,991.50 43495

5 HOME DEPOT - maintenance supplies 54.06 43496

6 K.C. WASTE - dumping fees 804.77 43497

7 K.C.W.A. - 2nd qtr. 2020 O&M and power stand-by 4,616.46 43498

8 N.K.W.S.D - March 2020 weather modification 6,672.50 43499

9 PG&E - office utilities 1,004.45 43500

10 PRINCIPAL LIFE - dental/vision/life insurance premium 4,200.16 43501

11 PROGRESSIVE TECH - new phone system 4,613.93 43502

12 SPECTRUM - internet access 256.01 43503

13 VERIZON - cellular phone service 639.27 43504

14 PAYROLL #5 59,178.88 WIRE

15 PAYROLL PEOPLE #5 145.74 WIRE

16 EDD-STATE P/R #5 3,539.13 WIRE

17 EFT-IRS P/R #5 20,428.40 WIRE

18 LINCOLN LIFE - retirement program 8,816.48 WIRE

19 LINCOLN LIFE - deferred comp. 3,471.00 WIRE

20 MASS MUTUAL - deferred comp. 1,390.00 WIRE

21 PAYROLL #6 59,451.01 WIRE

22 PAYROLL PEOPLE #6 298.33 WIRE

23 EDD-STATE P/R #6 3,549.22 WIRE

24 EFT-IRS P/R #6 2,603.11 WIRE

25 LINCOLN LIFE - retirement program 9,308.20 WIRE

26 LINCOLN LIFE - deferred comp. 3,471.00 WIRE

27 MASS MUTUAL - deferred comp. 1,390.00 WIRE

MARCH 2020 TOTAL $452,583.35

28 A-1 ANSWERING SERVICE - answering service 444.46 43505

29 ADVANCED DIST. - parts - #T-3 389.66 43506

30 ADMIN. SOLUTIONS - monthly, COBRA, medical admin. 560.00 43507

31 AMERICAN VAN - tool boxes, covers - #225 1,325.61 43508

32 AMERIFUEL - fleet fuel 304.16 43509

33 KEVIN ANTONGIOVANNI - director's fee, reissue checks 600.00 43510

34 B&B SURPLUS - angle iron, grating 1,704.83 43511

35 B.S.&E. - concrete, cart rental 307.01 43512

36 JOHN BIDART - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43513

KERN DELTA WATER DISTRICT

THURSDAY, APRIL 16, 2020

DISBURSEMENTS RECOMMENDED BY THE BUSINESS AND FINANCE COMMITTEE



37 BLUE PRINT SERV. - culvert prints 38.55 43514

38 BUGNI'S - maintenance supplies 152.21 43515

39 COFFEE BREAK - coffee service 115.50 43516

40 DONALD COLLINS - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43517

41 CORE & MAIN - storm drain pipe 5,436.29 43518

42 COUNTRY TIRE - tires - #326 382.37 43519

43 ELLISON, SCHNEIDER & HARRIS - professional services 183.00 43520

44 FLOYD'S - saw sharpening 64.00 43521

45 FRANK AND SON'S - replace rear window - #327 269.85 43522

46 FLYER'S - fleet fuel 11,205.02 43523

47 FRED GARONE - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43524

48 GRAINGER - parts - #T-3 152.99 43525

49 GREENFIELD C.W.D. - water service 52.16 43526

50 HYD. CONTROLS - hose, fittings, gauge - #T-3 251.86 43527

51 HUGHES SURVEYING - surveying - KI right-of-way 7,090.00 43528

52 INDEPENDENT FIRE - yearly extinguisher maintenance, replacements 1,528.28 43529

53 IND. MEDICAL - medical screening 145.00 43530

54 JAMES WATER BANK AUTHORITY - consulting - Kern IRWM Plan 484.70 43531

55 JIM BURKE - parts - #225, #326, #322, #219, #323, #327, new F-150 27,109.94 43532

56 DAVID KAISER - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43533

57 K.C. RECORDER - S/A redemption 20.00 43534

58 K.C. WASTE - dumping fee 1,246.95 43535

59 K.D. BANKING - CVC 2018 & 2019 pumping reconciliation 376.47 43536

60 LOWE'S - maintenance supplies 507.85 43537

61 MARCOM GROUP - web site support 95.00 43538

62 MARANATHA - lawn service 350.00 43539

63 JOEY MENDONCA - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43540

64 MOSSMAN'S - lunch 327.02 43541

65 McMURTREY, HARTSOCK & WORTH 22,530.67 43542

     General - $11,050.67

     Utility - $70.00

     State - $1,820.00

     Other - $9,590.00

66 N.K.W.S.D. - weather modification, W/M wages 10,253.62 43543

67 O'REILLY'S - parts - #T-33, #211 133.84 43544

68 ORKIN - pest control service 82.00 43545

69 RODNEY PALLA - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43546

70 PRICE DISPOSAL - dumping fee 13.22 43547

71 PROFORMA - employee awards 294.29 43548

72 QUALITY DIESEL - parts - #T-3 168.26 43549

73 QUINN - parts - grader #403 4,853.53 43550

74 SSD SYSTEMS - alarm service 197.85 43551

75 SCHWEBEL PETROLEUM - exhaust fluid, grease, oil 1,362.09 43552

76 SNIDER'S - locks, keys 271.73 43553

77 SOILS ENGINEERING - McCutchen property USA ticket 400.00 43554



78 SPARKLE - uniform service 2,028.15 43555

79 ROSS SPITZER - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43556

80 STINSON'S - office supplies, ink cartridges, cleaning supplies 1,905.72 43557

81 TARGET - Cheetah, Torpedo 6,944.24 43558

82 TARGET - Cheetah, Torpedo, Roundup 17,939.91 43559

83 TARGET - squirrel bait 341.86 43560

84 RICHARD TILLEMA - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43561

85 UNITED AG - medical insurance premium (2 mo.) 55,525.86 43562

86 UNITED PHOSPHORUS - Teton 133,715.69 43563

87 VACUSWEEP - parking lot maintenance 110.00 43564

88 WELLS FARGO BANKING -  bond administrative charge 4,500.00 43565

89 WEST COAST MAINTENANCE - cleaning service 721.00 43566

90 WESTAIR GASES - cylinder rentals, gases 1,100.81 43567

91 ZENITH INSURANCE - premium 9,879.00 43568

                                                                          APRIL 2020 SUB TOTAL 340,094.08$   



KERN DELTA WATER DISTRICT & KDWBP

Anticipated Payments - Month End - April 2020

Payee Reason

Approximate 

amount of 

Payment

ASI Supplemental Medical 560.00                 

Bank of America Management Credit Cards Usage 6,991.50              

Flyers Energy, LLC Gas and Diesel, March 1 - March 15 5,140.33              

Home Depot Credit Services Maintenance Materials 554.10                 

Kern County Public Works Landfill Waste Dumping 932.40                 

Lincoln Financial Group Pension Plan 9,427.78              

Lincoln Life Insurance Deferred Compensation 3,046.00              

Massachusetts Mutual Deferred Compensation 1,340.00              

North Kern WSD Weather Modification 6,672.50              

PG&E District Office Power Usage 2,116.60              

Principal Life Dental, Vision, Life Insurance Premium 4,226.49              

Spectrum Internet Access 263.00                 

Verizon Operations Phones 639.27                 

KDWD Total 41,909.97           





 

Page 1 of 8 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 

 

 

 This Contract is made on ___________________, 2020, by and between KERN DELTA 

WATER DISTRICT, with a principal place of business at 501 Taft Highway, Bakersfield, 

California 93307 (“District”) and ZEIDERS CONSULTING, Bakersfield, California 93314, an 

independent contractor (“Contractor”). 

 

 ARTICLE I. 

 TERM OF CONTRACT 

 

 1.01 Term:  This Contract will become effective on the date stated above and will 

continue in effect until the services provided for in this Agreement have been performed or until 

terminated as provided in this Agreement. 

 

 ARTICLE II. 

 SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR 

 

 2.01 Contractor Services: Contractor agrees to provide professional consulting as 

assigned by the District and accepted by the Contractor. 

 

 2.02 Method of Performing Services:  Contractor will determine the method, details, 

and means of performing the above-described services.   

 

 2.03 Status of Contractor: Contractor enters into this Contract, and will remain through 

the term of this Contract as an independent contractor.  Contractor agrees that Contractor is not, 

and will not become, an employee, partner, agent, or principal of District while this Contract is in 

effect.  Contractor agrees Contractor is not entitled to the rights or benefits afforded to District’s 

employees, including disability or unemployment insurance, workers’ compensation, medical 

insurance, sick leave, or any other employee benefit.  Contractor is responsible for providing, at 



 

Page 2 of 8 

Contractor’s own expense, disability, unemployment, and other insurance, workers’ 

compensation, training, permits, and licenses for Contractor and for Contractor’s employees and 

subcontractors. 

 

 2.04 Payment of Income Taxes: Contractor is responsible for paying, when due, all 

income taxes, including estimated taxes, incurred as a result of the compensation paid by District 

to Contractor for services under this Contract.  On request, Contractor will provide District with 

proof of timely payment.  Contractor agrees to indemnify District for any claims, costs, losses, 

fees, penalties, interest, or damages suffered by District resulting from Contractor’s failure to 

comply with this provision. 

 

 2.05 Use of Employees or Subcontractors: Contractor may, at Contractor’s own 

expense, use any employees or subcontractors as Contractor deems necessary to perform the 

services required of Contractor by this Contract.  District may not control, direct, or supervise 

Contractor’s employees or subcontractors in the performance of those services. 

 

 ARTICLE III. 

 COMPENSATION 

 

 3.01 Consideration:  In consideration for the services performed by Contractor, District 

agrees to pay Contractor in accordance with the current Rate-Sheet for Engineering Services and 

the budget agreed upon for each assignment. 

 

 3.02 Date for Payment of Compensation: Contractor will submit to District a statement 

of services rendered at the end of each month.  District agrees to pay the amount due to 

Contractor for services rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt of the statement. 

 

 3.03 Payment of Expenses: Except as otherwise provided in this Contract, Contractor 

will be responsible for all expenses incurred in performing services under this Contract. 



 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 ARTICLE IV. 

 OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR 

 

 4.01 Minimum Amount of Service: Contractor agrees to devote such time as is 

necessary to perform the services specified in the “Description of Services” attached to this 

Contract. 

 

 4.02 Final Documents:  Contractor agrees that all final engineering documents, in 

conformance with the California Business and Professions Code, produced by Contractor in the 

course of performing the Description of Services attached to this Contract shall become the 

property of the District upon completion of the services or termination of the Contract.  

Contractor shall provide the District one signed and sealed unbound original of the final 

engineering documents.  Contractor shall provide the District with an electronic copy of the final 

engineering documents in a format acceptable to District. 

 

 4.03 Non-Exclusive Relationship: Contractor may represent, perform services for, and 

contract with as many additional clients, persons, or companies as Contractor, in Contractor’s 

discretion, deems appropriate. 

 

 4.04 Tools, Materials, and Equipment: Contractor will supply all tools, materials, 

labor, and equipment required to perform the services under this Contract. 

 

 4.05 Workers’ Compensation: Contractor agrees to provide workers’ compensation 

insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees and agents, and agrees to hold harmless, 

defend with counsel acceptable to District, and indemnify District for any and all claims arising 

out of any injury, disability, or death of any of Contractor’s or its subcontractors’ employees or 

agents. 

 

 4.06 Liability Insurance:  Contractor agrees to provide the following: Comprehensive 



 

Page 4 of 8 

general liability coverage, including bodily injury coverage for not less than One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) per person and not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence 

and property damage coverage for not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00).  

Comprehensive vehicle liability coverage of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00). 

Workers’ Compensation Insurance as required by law.  Errors and omissions coverage for not 

less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00).  A Certificate of Insurance in a form subject to 

prior approval by District.  The District, Board of Directors, Officers, Employees and Agents 

shall be named as additional insureds in all policies referenced above. 

 

 Should any of the above-described policies be cancelled before the expiration date 

thereof, the issuing insurer shall mail thirty (30) day notice to District. 

 

 4.07 Contractor’s Qualifications: Contractor represents that Contractor has the 

qualifications and skills necessary to perform, and shall perform the services under this Contract 

in a competent, professional manner, in accordance with standards practiced in the industry, 

without the advice or direction of District, and shall at all times possess and maintain any 

necessary licenses, including any necessary valid driver’s license endorsements.  Contractor is 

able to fulfill the requirements of this Contract.  Failure to perform all the services required 

under this Contract constitutes a material breach of the Contract.  Contractor has complete and 

sole discretion for the manner in which the work under this Contract will be performed. 

 

 4.08 District Drug Policy:  Contractor acknowledges that District has adopted a policy 

of maintaining a drug-free workplace, agrees to abide by the provisions of the District’s 

substance abuse policy, and acknowledges receiving a copy of said policy.  Violation of this 

provision may result in immediate termination of this Contract. 

 

 4.09 Indemnity: Both District and Contractor respectively agree to indemnify, defend, 

and hold the other free and harmless from all claims, demands, losses, costs, expenses, 

obligations, liabilities, damages, recoveries, and deficiencies, including interest, penalties, 

attorneys’ fees and costs that the other may incur as a result of a breach of any representation or 



 

Page 5 of 8 

agreement contained in this Contract by District or Contractor. 

 

 4.10 Assignment: Neither this Contract nor any duties or obligations under this 

Contract may be assigned by Contractor without the prior written consent of District. 

 

 ARTICLE V. 

 OBLIGATIONS OF DISTRICT 

 

 5.01 Cooperation of Client: District agrees to comply with all reasonable requests of 

Contractor necessary to the performance of Contractor’s duties under this Contract. 

 

 5.02 Assignment: Neither this Contract nor any duties or obligations under this 

Contract may be assigned by District without the prior written consent of Contractor. 

 

 ARTICLE VI. 

 TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 

 

 6.01 Termination of Contract: Unless otherwise terminated as provided in this 

Contract, this Contract will continue in effect until the services provided for in this Contract have 

been fully and completely performed, and shall terminate unless renewed in writing by both 

parties. 

 

 6.02 Termination on Occurrence of Stated Events: This Contract will terminate 

automatically on the occurrence of any of the following events: 

 

  a. Bankruptcy or insolvency of either party; 

  b. Sale of the business by either party; 

 

  c. Dissolution of District; 

    d. Death or Dissolution of Contractor; 



 

Page 6 of 8 

  e. Assignment of this Contract by either party without the 

consent of the other. 

 

 6.03 Termination for Default: If either party defaults in the performance of this 

Contract or materially breaches any of its provisions, the non-breaching party may terminate this 

Contract by giving written notification to the breaching party.  Termination will take effect 

immediately on receipt of notice by the breaching party, or five (5) days after mailing of notice, 

whichever occurs first.  For the purpose of this paragraph, material breach of this Contract 

includes but is not limited to the following: 

 

  a. District’s failure to pay Contractor; 

  b. Contractor’s failure to complete the services required; 

  c. Contractor’s material breach of any representation or 

agreement contained in this Contract; 

  d. District’s material breach of any representation or 

agreement contained in this Contract. 

 

6.04 Convenience of Client: This Agreement may be terminated by District if deemed 

to be in the best interest of District, in which case District shall provide notice to Contractor of 

District’s desired termination, and the effective date by which Contractor shall cease performing 

work.  District shall pay Contractor for all work performed by Contractor up to the effective date. 

 

ARTICLE VII. 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

  

7.01 Information Furnished by Client:  Any written, printed, graphic, or electronically 

or magnetically recorded information furnished by District for Contractor’s use are the sole 

property of District.  This proprietary information includes but is not limited to customer 

requirements, customer lists, marketing information, and information concerning District’s 

employees, products, services, prices, operations, and subsidiaries.  Contractor will keep this 



 

Page 7 of 8 

confidential information in the strictest of confidence, and will not disclose it by any means to 

any person except with District’s approval, and only to the extent necessary to perform the 

services under this Contract.  This prohibition also applies to Contractor’s employees, agents, 

and subcontractors.  On termination of this Contract, Contractor will return any confidential 

information in his possession to Client. 

 

 ARTICLE VIII. 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 8.01 Notices: Any notices required to be given under this Contract by either party to 

the other may be effected by personal delivery in writing or by mail, registered or certified, 

postage prepaid with return receipt requested.  Mailed notices must be addressed to the parties at 

the addresses below, but each party may change the address by giving written notice in 

accordance with this paragraph.  Notices delivered personally will be deemed communicated as 

of actual receipt; mailed notices will be deemed communicated as of three (3) business days after 

mailing. 

 

 KERN DELTA WATER DISTRICT Address:  501 Taft Highway 

             Bakersfield, CA  93307 

             Attn:  General Manager 

 

 

 ZEIDERS CONSULTING                Address: 1655 Greeley Road 

                                             Bakersfield, CA 93314 

            Attn:  William Zeiders 

 

 8.02 Entire Agreement of the Parties: This Contract supersedes any and all other 

agreements, either oral or written, between the parties with respect to the rendering of services 

by Contractor for District and contains all of the representations, covenants, and agreements 

between the parties with respect to the rendering of those services.  Each party to this Contract 

acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises, or agreements, orally or 

otherwise, have been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party, which are not 

contained in this Contract, and that no other agreement, statement or promise not contained in 



this Contract will be valid or binding. Any modification of this Contract will be effective only if 

it is in writing, signed by the party to be charged. 

8.03 Partial Invalidity: If any provision of this Contract is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will continue in full 

force and effect without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

8.04 Payment of Money Due Deceased Contractor: If Contractor dies before 

completing the services under this Contract, any monies due Contractor from District under this 

Contract as of the date of death will be paid to the Contractor' s executors, administrators, heirs, 

personal representatives, successors and assigns. 

8.05 Governing Law: This Contract will be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of California. Venue for any legal action shall be in Kem County, 

California. 

DISTRICT: KERN DELTA WATER DISTRICT 

By: ______________ _ 

CONTRACTOR: ZEIDERS CONSULTING 

C:\UKn'Llpe\Docummu'DISTRJCTS\KERJ ' DELT A'Codrla for Services - blank form.doc 

Page 8of8 



 
 
 
 
 
 

MASTER DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (“Agreement”), effective this_____ , 2020, is by 
and between Kern Delta Water District, a California water special district, (“Client”), and AECOM Technical 
Services, Inc., a California corporation (“AECOM”); each also referred to individually as (“Party”) and 
collectively as (“Parties”). 

 
RECITAL 

 
WHEREAS Client has a need, from time-to-time, to access design engineering services involving multiple 
tasks for a single project or multiple tasks in support of multiple projects; and 

 
WHEREAS AECOM is willing to provide such design engineering services to Client under the terms and 
conditions set forth herein based on the particulars of each task. 

 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
1.1 AECOM shall perform the services set forth in one or more specific task orders (“Task Orders”). 
EXHIBIT A, incorporated herein by reference, is the preferred form for such use. 

 
1.2 The individual Task Orders will normally include the description of the project (”Project”); the scope of 
services to be performed under the specific Task Order (“Services”); the schedule for the performance of the 
Services (“Project Schedule”); deliverables to be provided under the Services (“Deliverables”); special terms 
and conditions unique to the specific Task Order (“Special Terms and Conditions”); and the designation of the 
primary representatives for each Party relating to the specific Task Order. 

 
1.3 Nothing in this Agreement provides a guaranty that the Client will issue, or that AECOM will accept, 
any Task Orders. AECOM’s decision to decline any Task Order shall be at its exclusive discretion and shall 
not be construed as a breach of this Agreement. Agreed upon Task Orders will require the signatures of  both 
Parties. 

 
1.4 It is the expressed intent of the Parties that this Agreement shall be made available to affiliates of 
AECOM. For the purposes of this Agreement, as it applies to each Task Order, the term “AECOM” shall mean 
either AECOM as defined above or the affiliate identified in the Task Order. The applicable Task  Order shall 
clearly identify the legal name of the affiliate accepting the Task Order. All rights and responsibilities of AECOM 
under a Task Order executed by an AECOM affiliate shall belong exclusively to the affiliate. 

 
2. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 
2.1 Upon execution by the Parties, this Agreement shall have the effective date as set forth above and 
shall remain in force for a period of two years, unless sooner terminated as provided herein or extended in 
writing by the Parties. 

 
2.2 If this Agreement is terminated for any reason, no new Task Orders may be issued, but any existing 
Task Orders shall remain in full force and subject to this Agreement until the Services under the respective 
Task Orders have been completed. 

 
2.3 Individual Task Orders may be terminated on the same basis as this Agreement. 
U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 

Page 1 of 15 



Kern Delta Water District 
March 2020 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 2 of 15 

 

 

 
3. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT AECOM shall be paid for the performance of the Services in 
accordance with ATTACHMENT 2 of the Task Order (“Compensation and Payment”), incorporated herein by 
reference and attached hereto. 

 
4. NOTICE Legal notice shall be given (i) by delivery in person, (ii) by a nationally recognized next day 
courier service, or (iii) by United States Postal Service, registered mail, postage prepaid and return receipt 
requested. Notices shall be effective upon actual delivery to the other Party at the applicable addresses set 
forth below: 

 
TO CLIENT: 
501 Taft Highway 
Bakersfield, CA 93307 
Attn:   [Project Manager] 

 
TO AECOM: 
5001 E. Commercenter Drive, Suite 100 
Bakersfield, CA 93309 
Attn: Daniel Cronquist, Project Manager 

 
Claims-related notices shall be copied to: 
AMER-DCSProjectClaimNotices@aecom.com 

 
or to which address the receiving Party may from time to time give notice to the other Party. Rejection or other 
refusal to accept, or the inability to deliver because of changed address of which no notice was given, shall be 
deemed to be receipt of the notice as of the date of such rejection, refusal to accept or inability to deliver. 
Claims-related notices need to include the AECOM project name and number found in this Agreement as well 
as contact information of the person submitting the notice. 

 
5. AECOM’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
5.1 AECOM shall perform the Services in accordance with the degree of professional skill, quality and 
care ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in the same locality under 
comparable circumstances.  The full extent of AECOM's responsibility with respect to the Services shall be  to 
perform in accordance with the above standards and to remedy any material deficiencies or defects in the 
Deliverables at AECOM’s own expense, provided that AECOM is notified by Client, in writing, of any such 
deficiency or defect within a reasonable period after discovery thereof, but in no event later than 90 days after 
AECOM's completion or termination of the Services. AECOM MAKES NO OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. 

 
5.2 AECOM will endeavor in good faith, as needed, to obtain from the appropriate authorities their 
interpretation of applicable codes and standards and will apply its professional judgment in interpreting the 
codes and standards as they apply to the Project at the time of performance of the Services.  Notwithstanding 
the above, the Parties agree that, as the Project progresses, such codes or standards may change or the 
applicability of such codes or standards may vary from AECOM’s original interpretation through no fault of 
AECOM and that additional costs necessary to conform to such changes or interpretations during or after 
execution of the Services will be subject to an equitable adjustment in the Compensation and Project Schedule. 

 
5.3 AECOM shall be responsible for its performance and that of AECOM’s lower-tier subconsultants and 
vendors. However, AECOM shall not be responsible for health or safety programs or precautions related to 
Client's activities or operations or those of Client's other contractors and consultants or their respective 
subcontractors and vendors (“Contractors”). Except as may be required by Task Order, AECOM shall have 
no responsibility for the construction work to be performed (“Work”), including without limitation (i) 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures; (ii) direction of Contractors’ personnel; 
(iii) quality control of the Work, (iv) selection of construction equipment; (v) coordination of Contractors’ work; 
(vi) placing into operation any plant or equipment; or (vii) Contractors’ failure to perform the Work in 
accordance with any applicable construction contract. AECOM shall not be responsible for inspecting, 
observing, reporting or correcting health or safety conditions or deficiencies of Client, Contractors or others 

mailto:AMER-DCSProjectClaimNotices@aecom.com


Kern Delta Water District 
March 2020 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 3 of 15 

 

 

at the project site (“Project Site”) other than AECOM’s employees, subconsultants and vendors. So as not 
to discourage AECOM from voluntarily addressing health or safety issues while at the Project Site, in the 
event AECOM does identify such issues by making observations, reports, suggestions or otherwise, AECOM 
shall have no authority to direct the actions of others not under AECOM’s responsibility and control and shall 
have no liability, responsibility, or affirmative duty arising on account of AECOM’s actions or forbearance. 

 
5.4 Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement, AECOM shall have no responsibility for the 
discovery, presence, handling, removal, transportation, storage or disposal of, or exposure of persons to 
hazardous materials in any form related to the Project. AECOM shall not be responsible for Client's pre- 
existing site conditions or the aggravation of those preexisting site conditions to the extent not caused by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of AECOM. 

 
5.5 In the event that the Services include construction observation or similar field services, AECOM’s 
responsibility shall be limited to determining general conformance with Client’s approve AECOM design. Visits 
by AECOM  to the Project Site and observations made by AECOM shall not relieve the Contractors of their 
obligation to conduct comprehensive inspections of the Work sufficient to ensure conformance with the intent 
of the construction contract documents, and shall not relieve the Contractors of their responsibility for means, 
methods, techniques, sequences and procedures necessary for coordinating and completing all portions of the 
Work and for all safety precautions incidental thereto. 

 
5.6 Any opinions of probable construction costs provided by AECOM represent AECOM's good faith 
professional judgment in light of its experience, knowledge and the information reasonably available to AECOM 
at the time of preparation of the opinion. However, since AECOM has no control over the market, economic 
conditions or the bidding procedures, AECOM, its directors, officers, employees and subconsultants do not 
make any guarantees or warranties whatsoever, whether express or implied, with respect to such opinions 
and accept no responsibility for any loss or damage arising therefrom or in any way related thereto. Third 
parties relying on such opinions do so at their own sole risk. 

 
6. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
6.1 Client shall provide in writing Client's full requirements and criteria for the Project, including design 
objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility and expandability, and 
any budgetary limitations. 

 
6.2 Client shall furnish to AECOM all applicable information and technical data in Client's possession or 
control reasonably required for the proper performance of the Services. AECOM shall be entitled to rely without 
independent verification upon the accuracy and completeness of information and data provided by Client or 
obtained from generally accepted sources within the industry, except to the extent such verification by AECOM 
is expressly required as a defined part of the Services. AECOM shall not be responsible for defects in its 
Services attributable to its reliance upon or use of information provided by Client. 

 
6.3 Client shall arrange for access and make all provisions necessary for AECOM to enter upon public 
and/or private property as required for AECOM to properly perform the Services. Client shall disclose to 
AECOM any known or suspected hazards at the Project Site which may pose a threat to human health, 
property or the environment. 

 
6.4 If any document or inquiry requires Client to approve, comment, or to provide any decision or direction 
with regard to the Services, such approval, comment, decision or direction shall be provided within a 
reasonable time within the context of the Project Schedule, or if not identified in the Project Schedule, within a 
reasonable time to facilitate the timely performance of the Services. 

 
7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create a 
partnership, joint venture, or create a relationship of employer/employee or principal/agent between Client or 
Client’s Contractors and AECOM. 



Kern Delta Water District 
March 2020 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 4 of 15 

 

 

 
8. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 
8.1 AECOM shall treat as confidential information and data delivered to it by Client or developed in the 
performance of the Services that are specified in writing by Client to be confidential (“Confidential Information”). 
Confidential Information shall not be disclosed to third parties by AECOM without the consent of Client, except 
to the extent reasonably believed necessary by AECOM for its proper performance of the Services, for a period 
of 5 years following completion or termination of this Agreement. 

 
8.2 Notwithstanding the above, these restrictions shall not apply to Confidential Information which (i) is 
already known to AECOM at the time of its disclosure; (ii) becomes publicly known through no wrongful act or 
omission of AECOM; (iii) is communicated to a third party with the express written consent of Client and is not 
subject to restrictions on further use or disclosure; (iv) is independently developed by AECOM; or, (v) is 
required by Law to be disclosed; provided that the information required for disclosure shall remain Confidential 
Information as to all other persons or entities pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, and provided further 
that AECOM shall promptly provide Client with written notice of such requirement. 

 
8.3 Upon termination of this Agreement or upon Client’s written request, AECOM shall return the 
Confidential Information to Client or destroy the Confidential Information in AECOM’s possession or control. 
Notwithstanding the above, AECOM shall not be required to destroy Confidential Information held 
electronically in email, archive or back-up systems in accordance with general systems archiving or backup 
policies or required for preservation by law, regulation, audit, data retention or corporate archival purposes or 
per regulatory, judicial or governmental order. All such retained Confidential Information shall be kept 
confidential by AECOM subject to and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 
9. DATA RIGHTS 

 
9.1 All right, title and interest in and to any Deliverables, and excluding any AECOM Intellectual Property, 
shall be assigned by AECOM to Client upon full payment for the Deliverables. Client  acknowledges and agrees 
that AECOM is the author of, and retains all rights, title and interest in all other intellectual property, including 
work papers, templates, details, designs, drawings, plans, renderings, analyses, calculations, models, 
software, macros, applications, specifications, processes, procedures, interim or draft documents, 
methodologies, know-how, and any other instruments of service: (a) belonging  to AECOM or its consultants 
prior to the effective date of this Agreement; (b) developed by AECOM or its consultants outside the scope of, 
or not exclusively pursuant to, this Agreement; (c) licensed by AECOM or its consultants from a third-party; 
and (d) included within the Deliverables but which are generic, generally applicable to or standard in AECOM’s 
business (collectively, “AECOM Intellectual Property”). To the extent the Deliverables contain, or Client’s 
receipt of the Services requires the use of AECOM Intellectual Property, and to the extent of AECOM’s 
ownership and control thereof, AECOM hereby grants to Client, upon full payment for the Deliverables and 
Services, a limited, non-exclusive, non-assignable, royalty-free license to use and sublicense said AECOM 
Intellectual Property, solely and to the extent necessary, to achieve the purposes stated in ATTACHMENT 1 
of the Task Order. 

 
9.2 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit AECOM or its consultants from using for other 
purposes, clients or projects the skills, knowledge and experience gained by AECOM or its consultants in the 
performance of the Services and provision of the Deliverables pursuant to this Agreement, provided that 
AECOM and its consultants do not use Client’s Confidential Information. 

 
9.3 AECOM, in developing solutions, testing hypotheses, or documenting designs, may employ advanced 
technologies for simulation, information modeling, generative design, and the development of project 
documentation (“Technical Tools”). While these Technical Tools may result in digital files and/or simulations 
or models (“Datasets”), when not specifically defined within this Agreement, these Datasets will not constitute 
a Deliverable or portion thereof. Rather, the Technical Tools and Datasets will be a byproduct of AECOM’s 
internal processes and will be AECOM's sole proprietary  information.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
in this Agreement, any ownership and data rights provisions will not apply to such Technical Tools and 
Datasets and AECOM will remain the sole owner of such Technical Tools and Datasets. 



Kern Delta Water District 
March 2020 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 5 of 15 

 

 

 

9.4 Client understands and accepts that the Services and Deliverables provided by AECOM pursuant to 
this Agreement are intended by AECOM for the sole use by Client for the specific purpose stated in 
ATTACHMENT 1 of the Task Order. Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless AECOM and its consultants and their directors, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, affiliated and parent companies (“AECOM Indemnitees”), against any and all claims, suits, 
causes of action, damages, losses, costs, expenses and liabilities (including the aggregate amount paid in 
reasonable settlement of any actions, suits, proceedings or claims), including reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
costs of defense, to which AECOM or any of the AECOM Indemnitees may become subject as a consequence 
of any use or modification of, reliance upon, or transmission to a third party of, said Services, Deliverables, or 
AECOM Intellectual Property, by Client outside the scope of this Agreement without the express, written 
permission by AECOM. 

 
10. RECORD DRAWINGS Client shall direct the Contractors to provide AECOM with updated red-line 
documentation which accurately and completely reflects any changes between the original AECOM design 
and the final construction. Record drawings to be delivered by AECOM to Client as a part of the Services 
(“Record Drawings”) reflect the design provided by AECOM as modified by such updated information. 
Consistent with AECOM’s defined Services, AECOM shall not have an obligation to independently validate 
such information related to the actual construction. AECOM makes no warranty or guarantee with regard to 
the accuracy or completeness of the information provided by the Contractors and third parties and shall bear 
no responsibility for any errors or omissions arising from or related to any defects or deficiencies in such 
information. 

 
11. ELECTRONIC FILES 

 
11.1 Electronic files to be delivered under this Agreement contain information to be used for the production 
of contract documents for the Project and are provided solely as an accommodation to Client. The official 
Contract Documents of Record (“Contract Documents”) are those documents produced by AECOM which bear 
seals and/or signatures. Unless otherwise expressly set forth in the Services, the electronic files delivered 
under this Agreement are not Contract Documents. 

 
11.2 The electronic files were created to supplement the official Contract Documents. Due to the possibility 
that files of this nature can be modified, either unintentionally or otherwise; or that the information contained in 
these files can be used in a manner for which they were not originally intended; or that electronic data may be 
corrupted by electronic transmission, AECOM makes no representation that the files, after delivery, will remain 
an accurate representation of the source data in AECOM's possession, or are suitable for any other purpose 
or use. 

 
11.3 All indications of AECOM’s and AECOM’s subconsultants’ involvement, including but not limited to 
seals and signatures, shall be removed from each electronic display and shall not be included in any prints 
produced therefrom. 

 
11.4 If a third-party license is required to access or use electronic files, Client acknowledges its 
responsibility at its own expense to obtain all applicable hardware and software needed to legally access the 
electronic files. 

 
 

12. CERTIFICATIONS 
 

12.1 For purposes of this Agreement, “certification” means to state or declare a professional opinion based 
on the standard of performance set forth in Section 5.1 above. 

 
12.2 AECOM shall not be required to execute certificates that would (i) result in AECOM having to certify, 
guarantee or warrant the existence of conditions whose existence AECOM cannot reasonably ascertain under 
the existing Services; (ii) require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the Services; or (iii) require 
AECOM to make a certification that would exceed what may reasonably be expected from firms of similar 
experience and expertise providing services of a similar nature. In addition, Client agrees not to 



Kern Delta Water District 
March 2020 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 6 of 15 

 

 

 

make resolution of any dispute with AECOM or payment of any amount due to AECOM in any way 
contingent upon AECOM executing such certificates. 

12.3 A professional's certification in no way relieves other parties from meeting their respective 
requirements imposed by contract or other means, including commonly accepted industry standards and 
practices. If required as a part of its Services, AECOM will provide a written report stating whether, in AECOM’s 
professional opinion and based on periodic site visits, the construction work complies generally with the 
Contract Documents. 

 
13. CHANGED SITE CONDITIONS The unexpected discovery of hazardous materials, hazardous 
wastes, pollutants, contaminants or concealed obstructions or utilities that could not reasonably have been 
anticipated from information reasonably available to AECOM may constitute a changed site condition.  To  the 
extent that such changed site condition materially increases the health and safety risks associated with the 
Services or requires AECOM to perform services materially different or materially in excess from those set 
forth in the Services, AECOM may, at its sole discretion, elect to suspend and/or terminate the related Services 
and shall be paid for the related Services up through the date of such termination. To the extent  that the 
changed site conditions materially impact the cost, level of effort or schedule of the Services, an equitable 
adjustment shall be made to the Services. 

 
14. MATERIALS AND SAMPLES Any items, substances, materials or samples removed from the Project 
Site for testing, analysis, or other evaluation will be returned to the Project Site unless otherwise agreed to by 
the Parties in writing. Client recognizes and agrees that AECOM is acting as a bailee and at no time assumes 
title to said items, substances, materials or samples. 

 
15. COMPLIANCE The Parties shall comply with applicable treaties, compacts, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, regulations, consent decrees, orders, judgments, rules, and other requirements of governmental or 
judicial entities that have jurisdiction over the Services (“Law”). 

 
16. FORCE MAJEURE Neither Party shall be responsible for a delay in its respective performance 
under this Agreement, other than a delay in payment for Services already performed, if such delay is caused 
by extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, war, terrorist attacks, sabotage, computer 
viruses, riots, strikes, lockouts or other industrial disturbances, acts of governmental agencies or authorities, 
discovery of Hazardous Materials or differing and unforeseeable site conditions, or other  events beyond the 
reasonable control of the claiming Party. AECOM shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment to the Project 
Schedule and compensation in the foregoing circumstances. 

 
17. INSURANCE 

 
17.1 AECOM will maintain the following insurance coverages and amounts: 

 
17.1.1 Workers Compensation insurance as required by Law; 

 
17.1.2 Employer’s Liability insurance with coverage of $1,000,000 per each accident/employee; 

 
17.1.3 Commercial General Liability insurance with coverage of $2,000,000 per 

occurrence/aggregate; 
 

17.1.4 Automobile Liability insurance with coverage of $1,000,000 combined single limit; and 
 

17.1.5 Professional Liability insurance with coverage of $2,000,000 per claim/aggregate. 
 

18. INDEMNITY 
 

18.1 AECOM agrees to indemnify Client, its officers, directors and employees, from third party claims for 
loss or damage, exclusive of defense obligations, for bodily injury or property damage (“Claims”), to the 
proportional extent caused by AECOM’s negligence or willful misconduct. 



Kern Delta Water District 
March 2020 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 7 of 15 

 

 

 
18.2 If the Services include AECOM’s performance during the construction phase of the Project, Client 
shall require Client’s Contractors working on the Project Site to include AECOM, its directors, officers and 
employees in any indemnity and in any insurance benefits that the Contractors are required to provide to 
Client relating to their work. 

 
19. CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES WAIVER NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION TO 
THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT AND TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, IN NO 
EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY OR ITS PARENTS, AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES, AND THEIR 
RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY 
INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER 
(INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS, LOSS OF REVENUE, LOSS OF USE OR 
INTERRUPTION OF BUSINESS) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF 
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND AECOM HEREBY RELEASES CLIENT AND 
CLIENT HEREBY RELEASES AECOM FROM ANY SUCH LIABILITY. 

 
20. RISK ALLOCATION & RESTRICTION OF REMEDIES THE PARTIES HAVE EVALUATED THE 
RESPECTIVE RISKS AND REMEDIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND AGREE TO ALLOCATE THE 
RISKS AND RESTRICT THE REMEDIES TO REFLECT THAT EVALUATION. NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY 
OTHER PROVISION TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT AND TO THE FULLEST EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY LAW, CLIENT AGREES TO RESTRICT ITS REMEDIES UNDER EACH TASK ORDER 
AGAINST AECOM, ITS PARENTS, AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES, AND THEIR RESPECTIVE 
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, SHAREHOLDERS AND EMPLOYEES, (“AECOM COVERED PARTIES”), SO 
THAT THE TOTAL AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF THE AECOM COVERED PARTIES SHALL NOT EXCEED 
$1,000,000 OR THE ACTUAL PAID COMPENSATION UNDER SUCH TASK ORDER, WHICHEVER IS 
GREATER. THIS RESTRICTION OF REMEDIES SHALL APPLY TO ALL SUITS, CLAIMS, ACTIONS, 
LOSSES, COSTS (INCLUDING ATTORNEY FEES) AND DAMAGES OF ANY NATURE ARISING FROM 
OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT WITHOUT REGARD TO THE LEGAL THEORY UNDER WHICH 
SUCH LIABILITY IS IMPOSED. CLAIMS MUST BE BROUGHT WITHIN THE APPROPRIATE STATUTE 
OF LIMITATIONS AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 

 
21. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 
21.1 Either Party may initiate a dispute resolution by providing written notice to the other Party setting 
forth the subject of the claim, dispute or controversy and the requested relief. The recipient of such notice 
shall respond within 5 business days with a written statement of its position and a recommended solution to 
the claim. 

 
21.2 If the Parties cannot resolve the dispute through negotiation, either Party may refer the claim, dispute 
or controversy to a panel (“Panel”) consisting of a designated senior representative from each Party 
(“Representative”), who shall have the authority to resolve it. The Representatives shall not have been directly 
involved in the Services and shall negotiate in good faith. No written or verbal representation made by either 
Party in the course of any Panel proceeding or other settlement negotiations shall be deemed to be a Party’s 
admission. If the representatives are unable to resolve the dispute within 15 business days, either Party may 
pursue its respective legal and equitable remedies. 

 
21.3 A Party’s failure to abide by the foregoing dispute resolution procedures prior to that Party’s filing of a 
lawsuit shall result in the dismissal of said lawsuit until the provisions of Articles 21.1 and 21.2 have been met. 

 
22. GOVERNING LAW 

 
This Agreement, and all claims or causes of action (whether in contract, tort or statute) that may be based 
upon, arise out of or relate to this Agreement, or the negotiation, execution or performance of this Agreement 
(including any claim or cause of action based upon, arising out of or related to any representation or warranty 
made in or in connection with this Agreement or as an inducement to enter into this Agreement), 



Kern Delta Water District 
March 2020 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 8 of 15 

 

 

 

shall be governed by, and enforced in accordance with, the internal laws of the state where the Project is 
located, (the “State”) without giving effect to any laws, rules or provisions of the State that would cause the 
application of the laws rules or provisions of any jurisdiction other than the State. 

 
23. TERMINATION 

 
23.1 This Agreement may be terminated for convenience by either Party upon 30 days advance written 
notice. Upon termination, AECOM will be paid for all Services performed up through the termination date. 

 
23.2 This Agreement may be terminated for cause by either Party if the other Party materially fails to 
perform its obligations under this Agreement, does not commence correction of such non-performance within 
10 business days of receipt of written notice and/or fails to diligently complete such correction thereafter. 
The respective rights and obligations of the Parties predating such termination shall survive termination of 
this Agreement. 

 
24. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING 

 
24.1 Neither Party may assign this Agreement without the written consent of the other Party, which 
unconsented-to assignment shall be void ab initio. 

 
24.2 Notwithstanding Section 24.1 above, the Parties recognize that AECOM has affiliated companies 
that have specialized expertise, necessary certifications/registrations or other capabilities that may make 
use of such affiliates more suitable for the performance of all or part of the Services. AECOM shall be entitled 
without additional consent to assign this Agreement or performance of the Services, in whole or in part, to 
any of AECOM’s subsidiaries or affiliates upon prior written notice to Client. 

 
25. PARTIES IN INTEREST Nothing in this Agreement, expressed or implied, is intended to confer on 
any person or entity other than the Parties, any right or remedy under or by reason of this Agreement. The 
provisions of this Agreement shall bind and inure solely to the benefit of the Parties and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns. 

 
26. WAIVER Either Party may in writing waive any provisions of this Agreement to the extent such 
provision is for the benefit of the waiving Party. No waiver by any Party of a breach of any provision of this 
Agreement shall be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent or different breach. 

 
27. SEVERABILITY AND SURVIVAL Articles 4 (Notice), 5 (AECOM’s Responsibilities), 6.2 (Reliance 
on Data), 8 (Confidentiality), 9 (Data Rights), 10 (Record Drawings), 11 (Electronic Records), 12 
(Certifications), 14 (Materials and Samples), 17 (Insurance), 18 (Indemnity), 19 (Consequential Damages 
Waiver), 20 (Risk Allocation), 21 (Dispute Resolution), 22 (Governing Law), 24 (Assignment and 
Subcontracting), 25 (Parties in Interest) and 27 (Severability and Survival) shall survive termination of this 
Agreement. To the extent any provision of this Agreement violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or 
unenforceable, said provision shall be deemed automatically so revised to the limited extent necessary to 
make that provision legal and enforceable and, to the fullest extent permitted by law, consistent with Parties’ 
original intent. 

 
28. PREPARATION OF THE AGREEMENT Each Party has had the opportunity to avail itself of legal 
advice and counsel. The Parties hereto agree that neither one of them shall be deemed to be the drafter  or 
author of this Agreement, and in the event this Agreement is subject to interpretation or construction by a 
court of law or panel of arbitration, such court or panel shall not construe this Agreement or any portion 
hereof against either Party as the drafter of this Agreement. 

 
29. SIGNATURES Each Party warrants that the person executing this Agreement has the necessary 
authority to do so on behalf of the respective Party. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute a single 
agreement. 

 
30. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 



Kern Delta Water District 
March 2020 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 9 of 15 

 

 

 
Executed amendments to this Master Design Engineering Services Agreement 
Master Design Engineering Services Agreement, Article 31 
Master Design Engineering Services Agreement, Articles 1 through 30 and 32 
Executed Task Orders 
Other contract documents 

 
Client may use its standard business forms (such as purchase orders) to administer any agreement between 
AECOM and Client, but use of such forms shall be for convenience purposes only, and any handwritten or 
typed provision in conflict with the terms of this Agreement, including these Terms and Conditions, and all pre-
printed terms and conditions contained in or on such forms shall be deemed stricken and null and void. 

 
31. SPECIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS 

 

 

32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT This Agreement contains all of the promises, representations and 
understandings of the Parties and supersedes any previous understandings, commitments, proposals or 
agreements, whether oral or written. This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except as set 
forth in a written amendment to this Agreement, duly executed by both Parties. 

 
 

AECOM Technical Services, Inc. CLIENT: Kern Delta Water District 
 
 
 

  

Signature 
 
 

Ben Horn 
Printed Name 

Signature 
 
 
 

Printed Name 

 
 

Engineering Manager 
  

Printed Title Printed Title 
 
 

Date Date 
 

5001 E. Commercenter Drive, Suite 100 
Bakersfield, CA 93309 

501 Taft Highway 
Bakersfield, CA 93307 

 
 

 

(End of page) 

None 



Insert Client’s Name 
Date 

 

 

 
AECOM Project Name:     

AECOM Project No.:      
Task Order No.:     

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
SAMPLE TASK ORDER FORM 

This  Task Order No.  (“Task Order”), with an effective date of  ,  20  ,  is  issued  under  the 
Master  Design  Engineering  Services  Agreement (“Agreement”) dated  , 20  by and 
between    (“Client”) and   a    
corporation. (“AECOM”); each also referred to individually as (“Party”) and collectively as (“Parties”). 

The Parties agree as follows: 

1. Upon execution by the Parties, this Task Order is hereby incorporated by reference into the 
Agreement. 

 
2. The following Attachments are hereby incorporated into this Task Order by reference: 

 
Attachment 1 Task Order Services, Schedule and Deliverables 
Attachment 2 Task Order Compensation 

 
3. Project Managers The respective project managers of the Parties shall be (please print) and are to 

be included in any Notice under Article 4 of the Agreement as it relates to this Task Order: 
 

AECOM: 
 

Name  
Title  
Phone Number  
Email Address  

 
Client: 

 
Name  
Title  
Phone Number  
Email Address  

 
4 All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain unchanged. 

 
5 Each Party represents that the person executing this Task Order has the necessary legal authority to 

do so on behalf of the respective Party. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 10 of 15 



Insert Client’s Name 
Date 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 11 of 15 

 

 

 

AECOM Technical Services, Inc. CLIENT:     
 
 
 

Signature Signature 
 
 
 

Printed Name Printed Name 
 
 

Printed Title Printed Title 

Date Date 

Address Address 

(End of page) 



Insert Client’s Name 
Date 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 12 of 15 

 

 

Services: 

Schedule: 

Deliverables: 

Task Order Special Terms and Conditions Only Applicable to this Task Order: 

(End of page) 

 
 
 
 

Attachment 1 

AECOM Project Number:     
AECOM Project Name:      

Task Order No.:      

 

Task Order Services, Schedule and Deliverables (Sample) 
 
 
 

1. 
 

 

 

 

 
 

2. 
 

 

 

 

 
 

3. 
 

 

 

 

 
 

4. 
 

 

 

 



Insert Client’s Name 
Date 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 13 of 15 

 

 

 

AECOM Project Number:     
AECOM Project Name:      

Task Order No.:      
 
 

Attachment 2 

Compensation and Payment (Sample) 

1. COMPENSATION The Services set forth in Attachment 1 will be compensated on the following 
basis: 

 
[ ] Advance retainer of [$ Numerical Amount] The advance retainer is to be applied to the final invoice. 
Any remainder will be returned to Client within 30 days of receipt of final payment. 

 
 

[ ] Time & Material - See Section 2.1 for Hourly Labor Rates 
 

[ ]    Time and Materials with a Not-to-Exceed (“NTE”) amount of ($ Numerical Amount).   The Hourly     Labor 
Rates (if applicable) are as in Section 2.1 below. Reimbursable expenses are included in the overall 
NTE cap. 

 
[ ] Lump Sum [$]: 

 
Milestone/Deliverable & Date Payment Amount 

 $ Numerical Amount 
 

[ ] Cost Plus Fixed Fee: [Cost $ Numerical Amount and Fee $ Numerical Amount] 

[ ] Other: 

 
 
 

2. RATE SCHEDULE Compensation shall be based on the following Hourly Labor Rate Schedule: 
 
 
 
 

2.1 HOURLY LABOR RATE SCHEDULE 
 

 $ 
 $ 
 $ 
 $ 
 $ 
 $ 
 $ 
 $ 
 $ 
 $ 
 $ 



Insert Client’s Name 
Date 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 14 of 15 

 

 

 

2.2 OTHER HOURLY LABOR RATE CATAGORIES If additional labor categories are authorized during 
the performance of this Agreement, compensation for each additional category will be negotiated at the time 
the additional Services are authorized. 

 
2.3 ANNUAL HOURLY LABOR RATE ADJUSTMENTS The Hourly Labor Rate Schedule is adjusted 
each calendar year to reflect updated labor cost categories. Labor cost of Services authorized in  subsequent 
calendar years will be based on the applicable Hourly Labor Rate Schedule for those years. 

 
3. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES Reimbursable expenses are actual expenditures made by AECOM 
for goods, travel expenses and vendor services in support of the performance of the Services and will be 
billed at the actual cost to AECOM plus ten percent (10%) to cover related administrative costs. 

 
4. CHANGE ORDERS The Parties may at any time and by written agreement make changes in the 
Services, Project Schedule, Compensation and/or terms and conditions of this Task Order. 

 
5. INVOICING AECOM will invoice Client on a monthly basis unless otherwise set forth herein. 

 
6. PAYMENT 

 
6.1 If payment is based on a NTE, once AECOM reaches the NTE, AECOM will stop further Services 
pending a Change Order to adjust the budget and schedule for the continued performance of the Services. 

 
6.2 Timely payment is a material term of this Agreement. Client shall pay all undisputed portions of 
AECOM’s invoices within 30 days of receipt without holdback or retention. The Client shall notify AECOM 
within fourteen (14) days of the receipt of the invoice of any disputed items. Such notice must be accompanied 
by a detailed description of any disputed items and include supporting documentation as well as references to 
the provision(s) of this Agreement which permit a holdback or retention. If such notice is not provided within 
fourteen (14) days, the Client waives its rights to dispute the invoice. Undisputed amounts remaining unpaid 
30 days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate of 10% per year (0.83% per month) on the unpaid 
balance and AECOM may suspend the Services pending receipt of such payment. In addition, AECOM retains 
its unrestricted rights under Article 23 (Termination) of the Agreement. 

 
6.3 If the Project is suspended by Client for more than 30 days, AECOM shall be paid for all Services 
performed prior to the effective date of suspension within 30 days of such suspension. Upon resumption of the 
Project, AECOM shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in cost and schedule to compensate AECOM for 
expenses incurred as a result of the interruption and resumption of the Services. 

 
6.4 To the extent that completion of the Services is delayed beyond the original scheduled completion 
date and such delay is not the fault of AECOM, an equitable adjustment shall be made to AECOM’s 
Compensation and Project Schedule. 

 
6.5 Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, Client shall pay or reimburse AECOM, as 
appropriate, for all categories of taxes other than income tax, including without limitation, sales, consumer, 
use, value added, gross receipts, privilege, and local license taxes related to the Services. 

 
6.5 Client shall make payments to AECOM using one of the following methods: 

 
6.5.1 AECOM LOCKBOX: 

 
AECOM Technical Services, Inc. 
1178 Paysphere Circle 
Chicago, IL 60674 

 
6.5.2 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER/ACH PAYMENT: 

 
Account Name: AECOM Technical Services, Inc. 
Bank Name: Bank of America 



Insert Client’s Name 
Date 

U.S. Master Design Engineering Services Agreement (May 17, 2019) 
Page 15 of 15 

 

 

 

Address1: Building D 
Address2: 2000 Clayton Road 
City/State/Zip: Concord, CA 94520-2425 
Account Number: 5800937020 
ABA Routing Number: 071000039 

 
6.5.3 WIRE TRANSFER: 

 
Account Name: AECOM Technical Services, Inc. 
Bank Name: Bank of America 
Address: 100 West 33rd St 
City/State/Zip: New York, NY 10001 
Account Number: 5800937020 
ABA Routing Number: 026009593 
SWIFT Code: BOFAUS3N 

 
6.5.4 Questions related to payment can be sent to: 

 
AECOM Cash Applications Supervisor by phone at (804) 515-8490 or by email at 
cashappsremittance@aecom.com 

 

(End of page) 

mailto:cashappsremittance@aecom.com


 

 
 

Tab III 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

KERN DELTA WATER DISTRICT 

MINUTES OF THE BUSINESS & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Thursday, April 16, 2020 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Thursday, April 16, 2020 10:10 A.M. – 11:38 A.M. 

DIRECTORS PRESENT:   Antongiovanni, Tillema; Via Phone:  Bidart 

OTHERS PRESENT:    General Manager Mulkay, COO Teglia, Assistant GM Bellue, Controller Duncan 

 

1.    CONSIDER ANY PROPOSED ADDITIONS TO OR DELETIONS FROM THE AGENDA 

  None 

2.    PUBLIC COMMENTS   

 None 

3.    INFORMATIONAL 

 a. Staff updated the Business & Finance Committee on the status of the District’s 2019 Financial 

Statements in preparation for the upcoming annual audit.  

 b. Staff informed the Business & Finance Committee of the District’s intent to review and 

possibly engage a new fleet fuel vendor at a savings in cost. 

4. ACTION 

 a. M/S/C (Tillema/Bidart) (yes – 3, no – 0):  The Business & Finance Committee recommends the 

Board approve the March and April 2020 District Accounts Payable Invoices, the anticipated 

April 2020 end of month Accounts Payable Invoices, and the March 2020 District and Water 

Banking Project Financial Statements, Treasurer’s Reports, and Delinquency Report as 

presented. 

5. FUTURE ITEMS 

 a. Staff updated the Business & Finance Committee on the annual audit of the District’s 2019 

financial statements scheduled to begin the week of May 18, 2020. 

 b. Staff will present a proposal to upgrade the current Sage AccPac accounting system at the next 

meeting of the Business & Finance Committee. 

6. Closed Session (54957.6) Declared at 10:35 a.m. 

Regular Session Declared at 11:37 a.m.  No action was taken that required disclosure under the 

Brown Act at this time. 

Meeting was adjourned at 11:38 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
___________________________________ 

Kevin Antongiovanni, Chairman 



MARCH SUB TOTAL 246,306.37$   

# PAYEE AMOUNT CHECK
1 AT&T - telephone service 304.27 43492
2 AT&T - mobile service 33.20 43493
3 ADMIN. SOLUTIONS - COBRA administration - February 2020 45.90 43494
4 BANK OF AMERICA - maintenance supplies, fuel, parts, lunch, conference 5,991.50 43495
5 HOME DEPOT - maintenance supplies 54.06 43496
6 K.C. WASTE - dumping fees 804.77 43497
7 K.C.W.A. - 2nd qtr. 2020 O&M and power stand-by 4,616.46 43498
8 N.K.W.S.D - March 2020 weather modification 6,672.50 43499
9 PG&E - office utilities 1,004.45 43500
10 PRINCIPAL LIFE - dental/vision/life insurance premium 4,200.16 43501
11 PROGRESSIVE TECH - new phone system 4,613.93 43502
12 SPECTRUM - internet access 256.01 43503
13 VERIZON - cellular phone service 639.27 43504
14 PAYROLL #5 59,178.88 WIRE
15 PAYROLL PEOPLE #5 145.74 WIRE
16 EDD-STATE P/R #5 3,539.13 WIRE
17 EFT-IRS P/R #5 20,428.40 WIRE
18 LINCOLN LIFE - retirement program 8,816.48 WIRE
19 LINCOLN LIFE - deferred comp. 3,471.00 WIRE
20 MASS MUTUAL - deferred comp. 1,390.00 WIRE
21 PAYROLL #6 59,451.01 WIRE
22 PAYROLL PEOPLE #6 298.33 WIRE
23 EDD-STATE P/R #6 3,549.22 WIRE
24 EFT-IRS P/R #6 2,603.11 WIRE
25 LINCOLN LIFE - retirement program 9,308.20 WIRE
26 LINCOLN LIFE - deferred comp. 3,471.00 WIRE
27 MASS MUTUAL - deferred comp. 1,390.00 WIRE

MARCH 2020 TOTAL $452,583.35

28 A-1 ANSWERING SERVICE - answering service 444.46 43505
29 ADVANCED DIST. - parts - #T-3 389.66 43506
30 ADMIN. SOLUTIONS - monthly, COBRA, medical admin. 560.00 43507
31 AMERICAN VAN - tool boxes, covers - #225 1,325.61 43508
32 AMERIFUEL - fleet fuel 304.16 43509
33 KEVIN ANTONGIOVANNI - director's fee, misc. meetings, reissue checks 600.00 43510
34 B&B SURPLUS - angle iron, grating 1,704.83 43511
35 B.S.&E. - concrete, cart rental 307.01 43512
36 JOHN BIDART - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43513

KERN DELTA WATER DISTRICT

THURSDAY, APRIL 16, 2020
DISBURSEMENTS RECOMMENDED BY THE BUSINESS AND FINANCE COMMITTEE



37 BLUE PRINT SERV. - culvert prints 38.55 43514
38 BUGNI'S - maintenance supplies 152.21 43515
39 COFFEE BREAK - coffee service 115.50 43516
40 DONALD COLLINS - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43517
41 CORE & MAIN - storm drain pipe 5,436.29 43518
42 COUNTRY TIRE - tires - #326 382.37 43519
43 ELLISON, SCHNEIDER & HARRIS - professional services 183.00 43520
44 FLOYD'S - saw sharpening 64.00 43521
45 FRANK AND SON'S - replace rear window - #327 269.85 43522
46 FLYER'S - fleet fuel 11,205.02 43523
47 FRED GARONE - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43524
48 GRAINGER - parts - #T-3 152.99 43525
49 GREENFIELD C.W.D. - water service 52.16 43526
50 HYD. CONTROLS - hose, fittings, gauge - #T-3 251.86 43527
51 HUGHES SURVEYING - surveying - KI right-of-way 7,090.00 43528
52 INDEPENDENT FIRE - yearly extinguisher maintenance, replacements 1,528.28 43529
53 IND. MEDICAL - medical screening 145.00 43530
54 JAMES WATER BANK AUTHORITY - consulting - Kern IRWM Plan 484.70 43531
55 JIM BURKE - parts - #225, #326, #322, #219, #323, #327, new F-150 27,109.94 43532
56 DAVID KAISER - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43533
57 K.C. RECORDER - S/A redemption 20.00 43534
58 K.C. WASTE - dumping fee 1,246.95 43535
59 K.D. BANKING - CVC 2018 & 2019 pumping reconciliation 376.47 43536
60 LOWE'S - maintenance supplies 507.85 43537
61 MARCOM GROUP - web site support 95.00 43538
62 MARANATHA - lawn service 350.00 43539
63 JOEY MENDONCA - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43540
64 MOSSMAN'S - lunch 327.02 43541
65 McMURTREY, HARTSOCK & WORTH 22,530.67 43542

     General - $11,050.67
     Utility - $70.00
     State - $1,820.00
     Other - $9,590.00

66 N.K.W.S.D. - weather modification, W/M wages 10,253.62 43543
67 O'REILLY'S - parts - #T-33, #211 133.84 43544
68 ORKIN - pest control service 82.00 43545
69 RODNEY PALLA - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43546
70 PRICE DISPOSAL - dumping fee 13.22 43547
71 PROFORMA - employee awards 294.29 43548
72 QUALITY DIESEL - parts - #T-3 168.26 43549
73 QUINN - parts - grader #403 4,853.53 43550
74 SSD SYSTEMS - alarm service 197.85 43551
75 SCHWEBEL PETROLEUM - exhaust fluid, grease, oil 1,362.09 43552
76 SNIDER'S - locks, keys 271.73 43553
77 SOILS ENGINEERING - McCutchen property USA ticket 400.00 43554



78 SPARKLE - uniform service 2,028.15 43555
79 ROSS SPITZER - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43556
80 STINSON'S - office supplies, ink cartridges, cleaning supplies 1,905.72 43557
81 TARGET - Cheetah, Torpedo 6,944.24 43558
82 TARGET - Cheetah, Torpedo, Roundup 17,939.91 43559
83 TARGET - squirrel bait 341.86 43560
84 RICHARD TILLEMA - director's fee, misc. meetings 200.00 43561
85 UNITED AG - medical insurance premium (2 mo.) 55,525.86 43562
86 UNITED PHOSPHORUS - Teton 133,715.69 43563
87 VACUSWEEP - parking lot maintenance 110.00 43564
88 WELLS FARGO BANKING -  bond administrative charge 4,500.00 43565
89 WEST COAST MAINTENANCE - cleaning service 721.00 43566
90 WESTAIR GASES - cylinder rentals, gases 1,100.81 43567
91 ZENITH INSURANCE - premium 9,879.00 43568

                                                                          APRIL 2020 SUB TOTAL 340,094.08$   



KERN DELTA WATER DISTRICT & KDWBP
Anticipated Payments - Month End - April 2020

Payee Reason

Approximate 
amount of 
Payment

ASI Supplemental Medical 560.00                 
Bank of America Management Credit Cards Usage 6,991.50              
Flyers Energy, LLC Gas and Diesel, March 1 - March 15 5,140.33              
Home Depot Credit Services Maintenance Materials 554.10                 
Kern County Public Works Landfill Waste Dumping 932.40                 
Lincoln Financial Group Pension Plan 9,427.78              
Lincoln Life Insurance Deferred Compensation 3,046.00              
Massachusetts Mutual Deferred Compensation 1,340.00              
North Kern WSD Weather Modification 6,672.50              
PG&E District Office Power Usage 2,116.60              
Principal Life Dental, Vision, Life Insurance Premium 4,226.49              
Spectrum Internet Access 263.00                 
Verizon Operations Phones 639.27                 

KDWD Total 41,909.97           



Assets
March 31,               

2020
February 29,               

2020

Month-to-
Month 

Variance

Current Assets:
Cash & Securities in Bank 20,523,514$       20,359,792$       163,722$      
Accounts Receivable 926,479              1,212,684           (286,206)       
Due From KDWBP -                      -                      -                
Inventories & Prepaid Expenses 270,078              152,798              117,280        

Total Current Assets 21,720,071         21,725,275         (5,203)           

Fixed Assets
District Structures, Rights of Way 13,725,807$       13,727,378$       (1,571)$         
CVC Expansion 8,622,495           8,622,495           -                
Machinery & Equipment 1,494,651           1,493,221           1,430            

23,842,953         23,843,094         (141)              

Accumulated Depreciation (6,330,838)          (6,289,838)          (41,000)         
Net Fixed Assets 17,512,115         17,553,256         (41,141)         

Investment in Joint Powers Authority 17,482$              17,482$              -$              
Investment in MET Program 8,890,130           8,890,130           -                

Total Assets 48,139,799$       48,186,143$       (46,344)$       

Liabilities & Equity

Current Liabilities:
Trade Accounts Payable 321,310$            268,368$            52,942$        
Accrued Liabilities 131,253              125,820              5,433            

Total Current Liabilities 452,563              394,188              58,375          

Long-Term Liabilities:
Bonds & COP Borrowing 4,230,000$         4,230,000$         -$              
Bonds Premium & Costs 168,032              168,032              -                

Total Long-Term Liabilities 4,398,032           4,398,032           -                

Total Liabilities 4,850,595           4,792,220           58,375          

Equity:
Equity From Past Years 44,371,448$       44,216,125$       155,323$      
Accumulative Equity - Current Year (1,082,244)          (822,201)             (260,042)       

Total Liabilities & Equity 48,139,799$       48,186,143$       (46,344)$       

Kern Delta Water District
Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2020

4/15/2020  4:30 PM



Kern Delta Water District
Cash Variance Analysis
March 31, 2020

Cash Received:
Accounts Receivable Collections 574,986        
Share of Property Tax Receipts 57,968          
Interest Received 107                

633,061        

Cash Disbursed:
Accounts Payable Paid (274,298)      
Payrolls Paid (195,041)      

(469,339)      

Net positive/(negative) variance 163,722        



Kern Delta Water District
Accounts Receivable Variance Analysis
March 31, 2020

Revenue Added to Accounts:
Water Sales - Utility Water 122,150          
Seepage Revenue 155,323          
District Wells Revenue 335                  
Other Misc Revenues 10,972             

288,780          

Cash Received on Account:

Water Payments (165,481)         
Misc Payments (284,913)         
Assessments Payments (124,592)         

(574,986)         
Interest Payments -                   

(574,986)         

Net positive/(negative) variance (286,206)         



Kern Delta Water District
Inventory/Prepaids Variance Analysis
March 31, 2020

Additions to Accounts:
Weed Control Chemicals Purchased 141,002        
Prepaid Additions 3,213            

144,215        

Usage/Amortization:
Chemicals Consumed During Month (16,722)         
Amortization of Prepaid Accounts (10,213)         

(26,935)         

Net positive/(negative) variance 117,280        

Kern Delta Water District
Inventory/Prepaids Variance Analysis
March 31, 2020

Additions to Accounts:
Weed Control Chemicals Purchased -                
Prepaid Additions -                

-                
Usage/Amortization:

Chemicals Consumed During Month -                
Amortization of Prepaid Accounts -                

-                

Net positive/(negative) variance -                



 Actual 
Current 
Month 

 Actual Year 
to Date 

 Annual 
Budget 

 YTD as % 
of Annual 

Budget 
(Target is 

25%) 
 Budget 

Remaining 

INCOME:
State water sales -$             -$                996,706$        0% 996,706$       
Utility water sales 122,150       403,926          3,214,297       13% 2,810,371      
COB/Cal Water/GCWD Revenue -               -                  816,000          0% 816,000         
Equalization -               9,147              9,147              100% 0                    
Assessments (0)                 1,013,183       1,014,767       100% 1,584             
Share of county tax 57,968         211,026          4,316,386       5% 4,105,360      
ILRP Contract Revenue -               -                  -                  -                 
Interest income 107              71,435            320,000          22% 248,565         
Other income 3,955           136,715          175,000          78% 38,285           
Water Transfer Charges -               365,500          731,000          50% 365,500         
Water Banking Expense Reimbursement -               -                  150,000          0% 150,000         

Total  income 184,181$     2,210,932$     11,743,303$   19% 9,532,372$    

EXPENSE:
Source of supply:

State water costs -$             1,947,293$     2,725,000$     71% 777,707$       
Exchange fees -               -                  76,500            0% 76,500           
Watermaster, City, Isabella 8,323           15,608            361,400          4% 345,792         
Miscellaneous source costs -               10,098            500,000          2% 489,902         

Total Source of supply 8,323$         1,972,999$     3,662,900$     54% 1,689,901$    

Transmission and Distribution:
Labor 194,426$     556,564$        2,217,409$     25% 1,660,845$    
Employee benefits 30,044         141,671          741,811          19% 600,140         
Maintenance & Repairs 61,073         118,262          1,141,803       10% 1,023,541      

Total Transmission and Distribution 285,543$     816,496$        4,101,023$     20% 3,284,527$    

Administrative & other costs:
Engineering consultant 601$            601$               50,000$          1% 49,399$         
Legal consultants 13,011         54,593            250,000          22% 195,407         
Special legal/engineering 9,703           18,330            100,000          18% 81,670           
Kern River GSA -               -                  200,000          0% 200,000         
Insurance 7,216           30,729            163,663          19% 132,934         
Office operations 18,116         98,515            327,313          30% 228,798         
Special expenses (see Footnote below): 60,710         177,912          557,518          32% 379,606         
Bond Interest expense -               -                  138,863          0% 138,863         
Depreciation 41,000         123,000          492,000          N/A 369,000         

Total adminstrative & other 150,357$     503,680$        2,279,357$     22% 1,775,677$    

Total expenses 444,223$     3,293,175$     10,043,280$   33% 6,750,105$    

Net Fav/(Unfav) Operating Results (260,042)$    (1,082,244)$    1,700,023$     2,782,267$    

Kern Delta Water District 
Income Statement

Through the Month Ended March 31, 2020

4/15/2020  4:16 PM



 

2020 2019 2018 2017
 
   Cash & Securities on hand - March 1 20,359,792$    16,635,880$    13,650,087$    9,454,009$      

       Add:   March receipts 633,061           393,528           482,466           316,283           

       Less:  March disbursements 469,339           1,846,286        490,332           722,780           

   Cash & Securities on hand - March 31, 2020 20,523,514$    15,183,122$    13,642,221$    9,047,511$      

          Petty Cash 500$                 
          Citizens Business Bank 760,314            
          Kern County Treasury 18,512,700       
          CBB Trust/LPL Financial 1,250,000         

20,523,514$     

   Restricted Reserves:
       Restricted Reserve Fund - General Manager (300,000)$        (300,000)$        -$                 -$                 

   Unrestricted Reserves:
       2015-A COP Reserve Fund (372,600)          (372,600)          (372,600)          (372,600)          
       Employee Medical/Dental Benefits (249,624)          (311,715)          (336,822)          (370,233)          
       Pipeline Maintenance (213,845)          (213,845)          (213,845)          (213,845)          
       Water Rights Protection & Litigation Reserve (3,212,744)       (3,292,137)       (3,350,562)       (3,697,264)       
   Total Reserves (4,348,812)$     (4,490,297)$     (4,273,829)$     (4,653,942)$     

   Cash Available - March 31, 2020 16,174,702$    10,692,825$    9,368,392$      4,393,570$      

TREASURER'S  REPORT

March 2020



NOTE: Formulas are in white so are transparent on this worksheet. Darken one month at a time & whiteo    

2019                                                                                                                                                                                                      2020
   Actual           Budgeted                                                               Actual
  (Accum-   (Accum-                           Monthly                        Accumulated     % of
  ulated) Monthly    ulated) Utility State Contracts Total Utility State Contracts Total    Budget

JAN 5,974 3,000 3,000 4,371 0 117 4,488 4,371 0 117 4,488 150%

FEB 8,134 3,000 6,000 7,356 0 325 7,681 11,727 0 442 12,169 203%
  

MAR 14,331 10,000 16,000 5,018 0 413 5,431 16,744 0 855 17,600 110%
  

APR 30,287 11,000 27,000 0
  

MAY 45,512 17,400 44,400 0

JUN 72,976 23,500 67,900 0

JUL 101,995 24,000 91,900 0

AUG 127,068 24,000 115,900 0

SEP 141,308 12,500 128,400 0

OCT 150,924 8,800 137,200 0

NOV 156,390 7,500 144,700 0

DEC 157,506 3,000 147,700 0

Kern Delta Water District
Monthly Water Sales Volume 

in Acre Feet

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

TH
O

U
SA

N
D

S 
O

F 
AC

R
E 

FE
ET

ACTUAL 2020

BUDGETED



KERN DELTA WATER DISTRICT
Aged Accounts Receivable 
Past Due Accounts
April 21, 2020

Account Name
0-30        
Days

31-60        
Days

61-90        
Days

Over 90 
Days

Total         
Past Due

887 Forney, Bruce 4.59          4.52          4.45          296.63      310.19      

897 Poncetta, David 1,628.31   -            -            -            1,628.31   

1270 Jassar, Sikander & Daljeet 748.93      -            -            -            748.93      

3529 Sanchez, Alfredo 293.86      -            -            -            293.86      

4511 Samra, Sukhmander & Karamjeet 502.50      -            -            -            502.50      

4682 Olam Farming 2,830.90   -            -            -            2,830.90   

5277 Aria, Rosa 1,212.76   -            -            -            1,212.76   

5583 Sanchez, Orlando 3.34          3.29          3.24          216.15      226.02      

OTHER 206.07      1.03          1.01          67.47        275.58      

7,431.26   8.84          8.70          580.25      8,029.05   



Kern Delta Water Banking Project
Balance Sheet
March 31, 2020

March 31,        
2020

February 29,        
2020

Month-to-
Month 

Variance
Current Assets:

Cash & Securities in Bank 13,160,095$      13,272,991$      (112,896)$     
Due from Metropolitan Water District 1,238,903          -                     1,238,903     
Inventory and Prepaids 98,144               98,144               -                

Total Current Assets 14,497,142$      13,371,135$      1,126,007$   

Fixed Assets at cost less depreciation:
All structures 58,901,177$      58,901,177$      -$              
Machinery and equipment 418,064             418,064             -                

59,319,241$      59,319,241$      -$              
Less: Accumulated depreciation (9,509,484)        (9,415,484)         (94,000)         

Total fixed assets 49,809,757$      49,903,757$      (94,000)$       

Total Assets 64,306,899$      63,274,891$      1,032,007$   

Current Liabilities:
Trade accounts payable -$                  -$                   -$              

Total current liabilities -$                  -$                   -$              

Equity:
Contributions to equity - KDWD (Land purchases) 8,890,130$        8,890,130$        -$              
Equity from past years 55,876,911        54,720,152        1,156,759     
Equity enhanced this year (460,142)           (335,390)            (124,752)       

Total Equity 64,306,899$      63,274,891$      1,032,007$   

Total Liabilities & Equity 64,306,899$      63,274,891$      1,032,007$   

Liabilities & Equity

Assets



Kern Delta Water Banking Project
Cash Variance Analysis
March 31, 2020

Cash Received:
Received From KDWD - CVC Ops/Power 55,627          
Received From ID#4 - CVC Ops/Power 55,627          
Interest Received 52                  

111,305        
Cash Disbursed:

Accounts Payable Paid (224,202)      
(224,202)      

Net positive/(negative) variance (112,896)      



Current Year
Month to Date

INCOME:
MET Revenues -$            -$            
Water Sales -              -              
Interest Income 52               12,853        

       Total of all income 52$             12,853$      

Transfer and Exchange Fees:
Wheeling Fees (70,394)       (70,394)       

Total Exchange Fees (70,394)$     (70,394)$     

Other Costs
Power - KB1-8, KDW1-2 764$           1,712$        
Power - AE1, AE2, AE3, AE4 765             1,743          
Power - BV1, BV2, BV3, BV4, BV5 165             333             
CVC Operating Costs 110,478      220,955      
CVC Power Costs 776             1,552          
O&M Spreading (11,750)       34,301        
Other O&M & Miscellaneous Costs -              793             
Legal & Accounting -              -              
Depreciation 94,000        282,000      
       Total Other Costs 195,198$    543,390$    

Total all expenses 124,804$    472,995$    

Favorable/(Unfavorable) Operating Results (124,752)$   (460,142)$   

Through the Period Ended March 31, 2020
Income Statement

Kern Delta Water Banking Project



2020 2019 2018 2017
 
   Cash & Securities on hand - March 1, 2020 13,272,991$      9,059,125$        9,535,590$        9,429,479$        

     Add: March receipts 111,305 479,699 87,722 138,349

     Less: March disbursements 224,202 210,917 171,212 221,392

   Cash & Securities on hand - March 31, 2020 13,160,095$      9,327,907$        9,452,101$        9,346,435$        

          Citizens Business Bank 475,930$               
          LPL Financial 500,000                 
          Kern County Treasury 12,184,165            

13,160,095$          

   Restricted Cash included in above: OM&R Spreading 800,773$           (574,976)$         
OM&R Extraction (86,757)             (189,289)           
OM&R CVC/Delivery Canal (3,176,927)        (3,318,405)        
Take/Put Fees (4,821,397)        (648,255)           

   Total Restricted (7,284,308)$      (4,730,925)$      

   Cash Available for Construction - March 31, 2020 5,875,787$        4,596,982$        

KERN DELTA WATER BANKING PROJECT

TREASURER'S REPORT

March 



 

 
 

Tab IV 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

MINUTES OF THE  
OPERATIONS AND PROJECTS COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, April 7, 2020  
 

Tuesday, April 7, 2020, 10:50 A.M. – 12:00 A.M. 
 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: Collins, Kaiser, Spitzer (call in) and Mendonca (call in) 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Assistant General Manager Bellue, Chief Operating  
    Officer Teglia, General Manager Mulkay 
1. CONSIDER ANY PROPOSED ADDITIONS TO OR DELETIONS FROM THE 

AGENDA 
  None. 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 None. 
1. Closed Session Declared (10:50 A.M.): Real Property Negotiations (54956.8): 

Property Description: Potential Recharge Lands/Water Exchange/Transfer/Sale/Purchase 
District Negotiator: Mark Mulkay 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms  

Regular Session Declared (11:25 A.M.):  No action was taken that required disclosure under the 
Brown Act. 

2. Projects:   
a. District Facility and Banking Maintenance  
b. Romero Basins Earthwork; The Committee requested that staff meet and confer with Lonnie 

A. Cross Land Leveling to review and revise their proposed project scope and quote. 
c. Branch 1 Pipeline Project at Hosking Road; M/S/C (Kaiser/Mendonca) (yes-4, no-0): The 

Committee recommends the Board approve the design for the pipelining and rerouting of a 
portion of the Branch 1. Full project approval will be recommended later when the fees are 
paid, agreements are executed, and easements are recorded.  

d. Branch 1 Easement Grant at Greenlawn Cemetery; M/S/C (Kaiser/Spitzer ) (yes-4, no-0): 
The Committee recommends the Board approve two Grants of Easement presented to the 
District for the Branch 1 Canal between Panama Lane and the Arvin Edison Canal.  

e. Water Banking Construction and Power Invoices; M/S/C (Kaiser/Mendonca ) (yes-4, no-
0):  The Committee recommends the Board approve payment of Water Banking and 
Power Invoices totaling $88,343.68 (plus additional PG&E well energy and stand-by 
costs).  See the attached April 21, 2020 Invoice and Disbursements memo to the 
Board for a full breakdown of the Invoices.  

5. FUTURE ITEMS 
 None discussed. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 12:00 A.M. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_________________________ 
David L. Kaiser 



 Maintenance Report  

March 2020 

1. Structure and Turnout Repairs. The following jobs were completed during the month;  
a. Install 48-in dia. board control box on the Smith Judd Extension  
b. Install 36-in dia. board control box in the18 N ditch by nursery  
c. Repair gopher hole on Central near 3-2-300   
d. Install crash post at Hirschfield manhole at northwest corner of Stine & McKee   

2. Shop. The following jobs were completed during the month;    
a. Normal service and repairs on District vehicles and equipment. 
b. Install electrical system to spray trailer T-3      
c. Repairs to truck #211 & 219 (brakes)  
d. Repairs to Grader (sloper bolt)  
e. Repair mower implement drive line  
f. Repairs to #402 backhoe (adjust extend-a-hoe shims) 

3. District Wells.   
a.  No monthly service or inspection of District Wells is month; 

4. Motor Grader # 403 The following canals were sloped and roads graded; 
a. Slope portions of Rim, Drain, 13 Ditch, 18 N&S and Kern Island         

5. Backhoe # 402 The following jobs were completed during the month;  
a. Load/Haul and place dirt and riprap for wash ins / washouts on canals  
b. Remove riprap from Smith Judd Extension and place downstream as needed 
c. Remove tumbleweeds from canals (Central, Kern Island, Farmers & Eastside)  
d. Rodent control on Central  

6. Backhoe # 404 The following jobs were completed this month; 
a. Removed debris from Eastside, Central, Stine, Randal, Burness, Branch 1, Smith 

Judd and East Branch 
b. Assist with box installations                 

7. Weed Spraying. The following canals were sprayed during the month; 
a. 18 N&S, 13 Ditch, Drain, Rim, Farmers, Smith Judd, BV and Kern Island         

8. Aquatic Treatments.  No Treatments were done this month for algae mats/aquatic weeds 
9. Rodent Control  

a. Bait Stations were checked, and all locations were filled throughout the District      
10. Trash Removal.  

a. Daily cleaning of crossings, weirs, and trash screens on all canals  
b. Remove debris from the Kern Island, Eastside, Central, Branch 1, Farmers and 

Stine and haul to the landfill. 
c. Tree and brush removal at the Head of the BV for grader passage and homeless 

prevention.   



d. Remove files and shelving from upstairs offices and transport to Derrel’s Mini 
Storage. Dispose of old files in accordance with District approved file retention 
policy. 

11. Fence Repairs. Fences and Gates were repaired at the following locations; 
a. Kern Island – 30th St., 34th St., Columbus, Fairview and Terrace Way    
b. Branch 1 – South H, Hughes and White Lane   
c. Central – Terrace Way, South Gate, Ming, Planz and Union    
d. Stine – Chester Lane, Garnsey, Real Rd., District and Ash         
e. BV – Mountain Vista   
f. Eastside – Kentucky, Lake, Hailey, Virginia, Quántico & Oswell   

12. Safety Meetings. Weekly tailgate safety topics were;                            
a. Hazard Communication Program Part 3 
b. Hazard Communication Program Part 4  
c. DOT Rules Training  
d. District COVID-19 Policy  

13. Water Banking Activities. The following jobs were completed during the month; 
a. Install (2) 36-in dia. board control boxes at Romero Basins. 
b. Mowing weeds at Romero & BV basins 
c. Fence repair at Romero 
d. Tumbleweed removal at all basins  

14. Future Projects. The following projects will be completed as time and scheduling permit:    
a. Meter and discharge pipe upgrade on Farmers (replace/repair meter) 
b. Trouble shoot, fine tune and begin usage of the trailer mounted spray system   
c. Oversee removal of piping obstruction on 20’in December (farmer’s responsibility) 
d. Install meters on Stine Canal weir at the Bladder outflow      

       15. Future Water Banking Projects. 
a. Install permanent staff gauges in basins  
b. Place riprap around eroded intertie structures as needed 
c. Prepare wells for planned usage in April   

   

 
   































 

 

To: Kern Delta Water District Board of Directors 

From: L. Mark Mulkay 

Date: April 21, 2020 

Re: Invoices and Disbursements, Special Projects & Water Banking Project Operation/Construction. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends payment of the following six payables divided into three overall groups of: 1) water 
banking program design, construction and construction support -- $00.00; 2) water banking variable -- 
$88,343.68; 3) Kern Delta Water District construction -- $00.00.  The total expenditure in March for 
these areas is $88,343.68 (plus additional PG&E well energy stand-by cost). 
DISCUSSION: 
The following six payables can be divided into three overall groups: 1) water banking program design, 
construction and construction support, 2) water banking variable, and 3) Kern Delta construction. 

First group (Water Banking Program Design, Construction and Construction Support): 

 

Second group (Water Banking Variable): 
1) AEWSD – $70,394.13 (Water deliveries) 
2) KCWA – $1,505.88 (CVC 2018-2019 pumping reconciliation) 
3) Kern Machinery – $3,301.45 (Parts; u-joint, hydraulic cylinder kit) 
4) Ruben’s Pipeline – $11,750.00 (Stine Basin weir repairs) 
5) PG&E – $1,236.02 (Power/stand-by energy cost for the wells associated with the Water Banking 

water production) 
6) PG&E – $156.20 (Power/stand-by energy cost for the wells associated with the Water Banking 

water production) 
 

Third group (Kern Delta Construction) 



 

 
 

Tab V 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Water Diversions, Year to Date  V-A

2/12/2020 Last Year

KERN RIVER 3 DAY MEAN INFLOW 1,018 CFS 2,627 CFS

KERN RIVER MEAN OUTFLOW 489 CFS 3,157 CFS

ISABELLA RESERVOIR STORAGE 187,652 ACFT 226,875 ACFT

REQUESTED OUTFLOW 530 CFS 3,150 CFS

Estimated: (CFS)

KDWD DAILY DIVERTED: (APRIL 15, 2020) @HEAD STATE XCHNG BANKING

KERN ISLAND 41 0 1316 0

EASTSIDE 22 0 0 0

BUENA VISTA -LEVEE 0 0 0 0

STINE 0 0 0 0

OTHER - River Channel 0 0 0 0

K.I. / A.E. Exchange Gate 0 0 0 0

STINE / A.E. Exchange Gate 0 0 0 0

Total CFS 63 0 1316 0

Estimated: (Acre Feet)

DIVERTED (MARCH 2020) UTILITY STATE PURCHASE BANKING

KERN ISLAND 9,122 0 0 0

EASTSIDE 2,596 0 0 0

C.O.B. Misc. 0 0 0 0

BUENA VISTA 0 0 0 0

STINE 0 0 0 0

FARMERS 0 0 0 0

SOUTH FORK 0 0 0 0

West Side State Sale 0 0 0 0

MONTHLY TOTAL 11,718 0 0 0

YEAR TO MARCH 31, 2020 39,279 ACFT 0 0 0

Year to March 31, 2020 Utility - State - Banking 39,279 ACFT

Estimate Max Storage

ACFT. STORAGE BALANCE AS OF: 3/31/2020 4/15/2020

KERN ISLAND 14,774 14,085 15,000

BUENA VISTA 3,009 3,015 Store All

STINE 1,406 1,531 Store All

FARMERS 1,387 1,467 Store All

STATE (19) Carryover 5,999 5,999 N/A

STATE (20) Contract 3,825 3,825 N/A

RRBWSD STORAGE 23,805 23,805 N/A

PIONEER PROJECT STORAGE 23,285 23,285 N/A

TOTAL ACFT. 77,490 77,012

KERN DELTA WATER DISTRICT

April 15, 2020

 17-140-070

1/2 Revised 4/15/2020 7:47 AM



Water Diversions, Year to Date V-A

K.D.W.D. CLIMATOLOGICAL OBSERVATION: ISABELLA CLIMATOLOGICAL OBSERVATION:

72 47

54 73

57 49

0.00 0.00

2.35 2.63

Seasonal 6.62 9.32 Seasonal

ISABELLA RESEVOIR:

LAKE ELEVATION (FT.) 2,564.20 MARCH AC. FT. INFLOW 28,931

STORAGE ACFT. 187,652 MARCH AC. FT. OUTFLOW 19,928

STORAGE CAPACITY 568,075 ACCUMULATIVE ACFT. INFLOW (19-20) 163,736

% OF CAPACITY 33% ACCUMULATIVE ACFT. OUTFLOW 167,812

COE STORAGE CAPACITY 360,000 % OF COE CAPACITY 52%

   Summary of Utility Water Diverted Year to Date: 3/31/2020    Summary of Other Water Diverted Year to Date: 3/31/2020

Other

Uility Exchanges State Purchase Banking

January 15,033 0 January 0 0 0

February 12,528 0 February 0 0 0

March 11,718 0 March 0 0 0

April April

May May

June June

July July

August August

September September

October October

November November

December December

Total 39,279 0 Total 0 0 0

*KD/NK 11/21/2017 Agreemtent: Water Year: 175% = 22,500 acre feet

   Water owed to K.D.W.D as of: 3/31/2020    Summary of Total State Water Used Year to Date: 3/31/2020

(OWED) (USED)

B.V.W.S.D. 2019 State Carryover*: 5,999 2019 Carryover 5,999 0

2020 State Contract: Table A 3,825 2020 Contract 3,825 0

Total 9,824 0

Quantities in acft. TOTAL 9,824 Net Owed to KDWD TOTAL 9,824

*Maximum State Carryover Balance: 6,000 acre feet

YEAR TO DATE PRECIP.

MINIMUM TEMPERATURE

MAXIMUM TEMPERATURE

PRESENT TEMPERATURE

PRECIPITATION - 24 HR. DAY

PRECIPITATION - MONTH

North Kern*

0

0

0

0

 17-140-070

2/2 4/15/2020 7:47 AM



Depth-to-Groundwater
2020

JA
N 20

15

JA
N 20

16

JA
N 20

17

JA
N 20

18

JA
N 20

19

JA
N 20

20

FEB 20
20

M
AR 20

20

APR 20
19

M
AY 20

20

JU
N 20

20

JU
L 20

20

AUG 20
20

SEP 20
20

OCT 20
20

NOV 20
20

DEC 20
20

HIG
H

LOW
AVERAGE

30/26-26C R 196 206 190 R 204 202 210 R 210 202 205

30/26-26G 187 199 207 197 R 199 320 324 R 324 199 281

30/26-27J 177 198 206 198 R 210 315 311 R 315 210 279

30/26-35N NR 181 184 171 164 160 161 171 160 164

30/27-31E 185 202 214 181 202 219 218 208 R 219 208 215

31/26-08G 152 168 NR 168 NR 204 R 203 R 204 203 204

31/26-10J 175 206 NR 170 202 NR L 200 201 201 200 201

31/27-06C 200 195 202 NR 208 215 210 206 206 215 206 209

31/27-07B 189 198 NR 199 R 200 222 R 203 222 200 208

31/26-13N 198 180 201 NR 200 R 203 203 200 202

31/26-15J 200 168 205 NR L L L 0 0 ####

31/26-16P NR 168 207 204 200 204 200 204 200 202

31/26-17Q NR NR 210 203 218 217 200 218 200 210

31/26-21N NR 175 238 204 R 201 203 204 201 203

31/26-30G 186 159 240 268 350 206 204 350 204 257

31/27-18D01 NR NR 206 201 206 203 R 206 201 203

32/26-08J 132 189 215 209 206 204 206 209 204 206

32/27-07N 160 NR 200 288 289 200 223 289 200 250

30/28-29B NR 236 243 229 234 234 240 240 229 234

31/27-01L 190 260 220 232 219 206 202 232 202 215

31/27-04A 158 176 183 184 168 170 167 184 167 172

31/27-05J NR 200 NR 228 R 208 NR 228 208 218

31/27-10B NR NR NR 208 200 NR 200 208 200 203

31/27-11K 171 170 330 227 326 218 NR 326 218 257

31/27-12Q NR 140 140 139 133 133 131 139 131 134

31/28-08A 216 220 243 244 230 248 240 248 230 241

N
or

th
w

es
t Q

ua
dr

an
t

S
ou

th
w

es
t Q

ua
dr

an
t

N
or

th
-C

en
tr

al
 Q

ua
dr

an
t

depth to groundwater unit of measurement = feet

1 of 8

4/15/2020



Depth-to-Groundwater
2020

JA
N 20

15

JA
N 20

16

JA
N 20

17

JA
N 20

18

JA
N 20

19

JA
N 20

20

FEB 20
20

M
AR 20

20

APR 20
19

M
AY 20

20

JU
N 20

20

JU
L 20

20

AUG 20
20

SEP 20
20

OCT 20
20

NOV 20
20

DEC 20
20

HIG
H

LOW
AVERAGE

31/27-20H NR NR NR 211 299 202 202 299 202 229

31/27-21M NR 160 L L 298 316 340 340 298 318

31/28-20D NR 180 190 201 R R 280 280 201 241

32/27-15B 192 196 231 202 205 200 200 205 200 202

32/28-19A 216 NR 215 222 215 203 206 222 203 212

32/28-05A NR NR 250 239 211 200 210 239 200 215

32/28-05B NR NR 226 201 202 190 202 202 190 199

32/28-08R NR NR 224 253 207 205 203 253 203 217

30/28-11F 240 250 254 248 263 263 264 260 259 264 259 262

30/28-13C 299 290 R 300 308 305 302 308 300 304

30/28-24R NR NR 306 311 NR NR NR 311 311 311

30/28-26R NR NR 287 NR NR NR NR 0 0 ####

30/28-36A 212 218 215 210 218 210 214

30/29-31C 319 323 327 338 328 323 360 360 323 337

31/28-02H NR 288 291 290 290 292 291 292 290 291

31/28-10A 328 249 253 253 258 257 256 258 253 256

31/28-12P NR 222 286 284 R NR 232 284 232 258

31/28-13H2 NR NR 315 315 312 315 312 314

31/28-14D 226 233 239 230 230 NR 227 230 227 229

31/28-23H NR 278 290 286 289 285 268 289 268 282

31/28-34H NR NR 337 206 202 205 219 219 202 208

31/29-18A NR 234 335 333 338 322 289 338 289 321

31/29-28C 326 257 NR 219 347 344 334 322 370 370 322 343

31/29-30H NR NR NR NR 320 220 210 320 210 250

31/29-33J NR 294 342 250 319 313 316 319 250 300

32/28-14F 287 NR NR NR NR 222 228 225 230 230 222 226

32/28-15R 250 305 NR 300 263 272 263 269 285 285 263 272

32/28-01P NR NR NR NR 200 200 200 200 200 200

32/29-06P 193 198 201 NR 183 177 179 181 181 181 177 180

High Low Ave.
324 160 218 R = Pump Running

#### 200 217 NR = No Reading (well temporarily inaccessible, unreliable reading, etc)
326 131 209 CAP = Well has been Capped
340 190 229 WA= Well added to rotation

#### 210 279 NW = No well, well removed since previous well run
370 177 260 L = Gated well, letter has been sent to property owner requesting accessSOUTHEAST

S
ou

th
-C

en
tr

al
 Q

ua
dr

an
t

N
or

th
ea

st
 Q

ua
dr

an
t

S
ou

th
ea

st
 Q

ua
dr

an
t

NORTHWEST
SOUTHWEST

NORTH-CENTRAL
SOUTH-CENTRAL

NORTHEAST

depth to groundwater unit of measurement = feet

2 of 8

4/15/2020



DEPTH-TO-GROUNDWATER
(values in feet)

31/27‐05J

150

170

190

210

230

250

270

290

310

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

NORTHWEST  

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Page  3 of 8

4/15/2020



DEPTH-TO-GROUNDWATER
(values in feet)

160 L L

150

170

190

210

230

250

270

290

310

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

SOUTHWEST 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Page  4 of 8

4/15/2020



DEPTH-TO-GROUNDWATER
(values in feet)

150

170

190

210

230

250

270

290

310

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

NORTH CENTRAL 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Page  5 of 8

4/15/2020



DEPTH-TO-GROUNDWATER
(values in feet)

150

170

190

210

230

250

270

290

310

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

SOUTH CENTRAL 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Page  6 of 8

4/15/2020



DEPTH-TO-GROUNDWATER
(values in feet)

150

170

190

210

230

250

270

290

310

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

NORTHEAST 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Page  7 of 8

4/15/2020



DEPTH-TO-GROUNDWATER
(values in feet)

150

170

190

210

230

250

270

290

310

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

SOUTHEAST 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Page  8 of 8

4/15/2020



















 

 
 

Tab VI 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

Tab VII 
 
 
 
 
 
 



March 30, 2020    
 
 
The Honorable Gavin Newsom 
Governor, State of California 
State Capitol 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
Dear Governor Newsom: 
 
“[T]his is a moment we need to make tough decisions . . . We need to bend the curve in the State 
of California.” Gov. Gavin Newsom, March 19, 2020, Speaking on Covid-19 Order. 
  
Agriculture is an essential industry for California, socially, economically and culturally.  Its 
importance is even more profound now during the Covid-19 Crisis.  To ensure this industry, and 
the thousands and thousands of jobs it sustains, can continue to play an important role in 
California’s economy, we respectfully encourage you to increase the State Water Project 
(“SWP”) allocation to 35 percent.  The aim is to enhance the economy of the San Joaquin Valley 
by achieving the co-equal goals of employing thousands of people in need—many living in 
severely disadvantaged communities—who are ready, willing and able to do jobs that only water 
can provide; and producing food and fiber that will ensure food security for our nation. 
 
Farming is the primary source of employment in the San Joaquin Valley. For example, in Kings 
County, the January 2020 unemployment rate is 9.4 percent, compared to a 4.3 percent rate for 
California. Half of Kings County is classified as disadvantaged communities. The present Covid-
19 Crisis is causing layoffs across nearly every sector, so these unemployment rates will almost 
certainly increase. An increase in the SWP allocation would increase imminent seasonal 
plantings, generating positive social and economic benefits for many communities. Increased 
plantings will require higher employment and additional hours through the harvest season, which 
will help alleviate the impending unemployment spike. 
 
Storms in the past week have deposited several feet of snow onto the Sierras, which has 
increased the trend of the year’s hydrology to nearly 70 percent of average. This March snow is a 
blessing, especially if the State Water Project allocation responsibly reflects this reality.  
 
We understand there are broader, long-term legal and policy issues regarding water in California. 
The State of California, however, has complete control over the SWP allocation. By increasing it 
to a minimum of 35 percent, from its present level of 15 percent, you can alleviate immediate 
social and economic hardship for thousands of families and their communities throughout the 
San Joaquin Valley.  
 
Regards, 
[Signatures on Following Pages] 
 

  

 

   



     
Doug Verboon, Chairman   Silvia Maldonado, Chairperson 
County of Kings    Kettleman City Community Services District 
 

 
Richard Valle, Supervisor Dist. 2  Melissa Whitten, City Manager 
County of Kings    City of Avenal  

    
Kindon Meik, City Manager    Bruce Howarth, General Manager 
City of Corcoran    Alpaugh Community Services District 

  
Dusty Ference, Executive Director  Lance Lippincot, President/CEO 
Kings County Farm Bureau   Kings County Economic Development Corporation 

   
Mark Gilkey, General Manager  Scott Sills, General Manager 
Tulare Lake Basin Water Storage District Empire-Westside Irrigation District 
 

  
Dale Melville, General Manager  Phillip Nixon, General Manager 
Dudley Ridge Water District   Berrenda Mesa Water District 
      Belridge Water Storage District 
      Lost Hills Water District 



    
Jeof Wyrick, President   L. Mark Mulkay, General Manager 
Henry Miller Water District   Kern Delta Water District 
 
 

  
Dennis Mills, General Manager  Nathan Olsen, City Manager 
Kings County Water District   City of Lemoore 
Mid-Kings River GSA 
 
 

 
LaToya Tate, General Manager      
Home Garden Community Services District 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DWR’s Yuba Accord Water Transfer Program for 2020 
Yuba Water Component Information 

 
 
Pursuant to the Yuba Accord, the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) has given pre-notice 
that they will implement a Yuba Water Program (Program) during 2020.  As a signatory to the Yuba 
Agreement, Kern County Water Agency (Agency) is offering this water to its participating Member Units.  
A general description of the Program is as follows: 

• For Components 1 through 3 (C1-3) water, 60,000-100,000 acre-feet (AF) of water is likely to be 
available at $200/AF based on a dry year classification (subject to the final Sacramento Valley 
index as of the May Bulletin 120). 

 

• For Component 4 (C4) water, 77,000 AF of water is likely to be available at $350/AF.   
 

• DWR staff currently estimates there is sufficient transfer capacity to move Yuba water.  
However, the ability to move water is subject to changing conditions.  Therefore, the full 
amount of Components 1-3 water may not be available in 2020, and it is unlikely that it would 
be repaid in a future year. 
 

• DWR has asked that Contractors provide their requests for Component 4 water now; however, 
requests will be able to be modified any time before May 13. 

 

• Purchase prices are for water north of the Delta (NOD), before carriage losses.  Historically, 
operators have estimated carriage losses to be between 20-35 percent.   
 

• Estimated Variable OMP&R and Off-Aqueduct costs through Dos Amigos are $39/AF. 
 

• Pursuant to the DWR/Agency long-term Yuba Transfer agreement, the Agency is obligated to 
purchase its allocated share of Yuba C1-3 water unless another Yuba participant is willing to 
purchase our allocated share. 

 

• Pursuant to the Agency/MU long-term Yuba agreement, each district is obligated to purchase its 
allocated share of Yuba C1-3 water as one block of water, at a melded rate, unless another 
participating MU (or SWC) is willing to purchase your allocated share.   Program water is 
allocated based on participating MUs SWP Table A amounts. 

 

• Pursuant to Amendment No. 4 of the Agency/DWR Yuba Accord agreement, the Agency is not 
obligated to purchase C4 water. 
 

• All program water made available may be greater or lesser than has been predicted by DWR.  
Therefore, participants are urged to request the maximum amount they would like to receive to 
allow for efficient allocation of any added water that might become available later in the 
transfer season.  All program requests are NOD, before carriage losses. 
 



As a participating Member Unit in the Yuba Program, please complete this request form and return it to 
the Agency no later than 5:00 p.m. Friday, April 10, 2020.  You will be notified of your allocated share of 
the Agency’s purchase. 
 
 
Member Unit Request Section: 
We hereby request our share of Program water as described above and as outlined in the chart below: 

 

Yuba 
Water 
Type 

Est. Amount 
Available 

NOD Cost1 

Est. SOD 
Cost 

(assumes 
35% loss) 

Est. Cost 
thru 

Dos Amigos 

Total Est. 
Cost thru 

Dos Amigos 

District 
Request 
Amount2 

C1-3 
60,000-

100,000 AF 
$200/AF $308/AF $39/AF $347/AF 

Max 
Available 

C4 77,000 AF $350/AF $538/AF $39/AF $577/AF 0 

 
 
 

L. Mark Mulkay  Kern Delta WD  3/30/2020 

By  District  Date 
 

 
1 Subject to change based on the final amount of Components 2 and 3 water made available. 
2 The amount requested may be in excess of the estimated amount available. 




	BANKING DECEMBER 2019 Payables Lynn.pdf
	Sheet1

	2019 DECEMBER payable.pdf
	Sheet1

	1 Consultant's Contract for Services - KDWD-Zeiders Consulting 040720 bz edits Signed.pdf
	Consultant's Contract for Services - KDWD-Zeiders Consulting 040720 bz edits Signed
	Consultant's Contract for Services - KDWD-Zeiders Consulting 040720 bz edits Signed - pg8

	1 AECOM Kern Delta US_Master_Design_Engineering_Services_Agreement_.pdf
	MASTER DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT
	RECITAL
	1. SCOPE OF SERVICES
	2. TERM OF AGREEMENT
	TO CLIENT:
	TO AECOM:
	5. AECOM’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	6. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	8. CONFIDENTIALITY
	9. DATA RIGHTS
	11. ELECTRONIC FILES
	12. CERTIFICATIONS
	17. INSURANCE
	18. INDEMNITY
	21. DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	22. GOVERNING LAW
	23. TERMINATION
	24. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING
	30. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE
	31. SPECIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

	EXHIBIT A
	AECOM:
	AECOM Technical Services, Inc. CLIENT:
	Task Order Services, Schedule and Deliverables (Sample)
	Attachment 2 Compensation and Payment (Sample)
	2.1 HOURLY LABOR RATE SCHEDULE
	6. PAYMENT



	1 KDWD Financials - 3_2020.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income

	1 KD Treasurer Report_3_2020.pdf
	March 2020

	1 MET Financials - 3_2020 For Mark.pdf
	Balance Sheet 
	Income Stmt

	April 2020 Financial Agenda Packet_st.pdf
	Copy of APRIL 2020
	Sheet1

	Untitled
	KDWD Month End Payments
	Sheet1

	KDWD Financials - 3_2020_Balance Sheet
	Balance Sheet

	Water Past Due For Board
	Sheet1

	Water Sales Graph_ 2020
	2020

	Treasurer Report_3_2020
	March 2020

	KDWD Financials - 3_2020
	Income

	MET Financials - 3_2020 For Mark
	Balance Sheet 

	MET Financials - 3_2020 For Mark_Income Statement
	Income Stmt

	MET Financials - 3_2020 For Mark_Treasurer's Report.pdf
	Treasurer's Report

	Untitled
	Cash Variance Analysis_KD Cash.pdf
	Cash

	Cash Variance Analysis_AR.pdf
	Accounts Receivable

	Cash Variance Analysis_Inventory.pdf
	Inventory

	Cash Variance Analysis_Banking Cash.pdf
	Cash





